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To be an excellent organization in offering a wide range of compensations to
patients with pneumoconiosis and/or mesothelioma, providing quality rehabilitation
care to the patients for enhancing their physical condition, and, developing and
implementing preventive measures for striving to minimize the occurrence of these
diseases among the workforce in the construction and quarry industries.
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To provide a platform for the compensation, rehabilitation
and prevention of pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma for the
betterment of the patients, the workforce in the industries
as well as the society as a whole, we endeavor to fulfill the
statutory functions in a professional and caring manner
through:

utilizing effectively the resources collected from the
construction and quarry industries in accordance with
the Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma (Compensation)
Ordinance to fulfill our statutory functions;

launching rehabilitation programmes to enhance the
physical condition of the patients;

implementing educational and publicity programmes to
raise the awareness of employers, workers, professionals
and trainees in the industries as well as the public at large
on the prevention of the above diseases, and facilitate
them in strengthening prevention works;

building an occupational
practitioners in the industries;

health culture among

providing medical
construction workers;

examination programme for
supporting researches relating to the prevention, treatment
and rehabilitation of the above diseases; and

maintaining a team of quality, efficient and people-
oriented staff.

CODE OF ETHICS

practising the principles of honesty, integrity, objectivity,
impartiality, accountability, dedication, professionalism and
diligence.
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COMMITTEE ON FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION
MBRTEREZES

The financial position of the Board was stable and healthy in 2018 and |
am honoured to report the works of this Committee.

Total levy income decreased by 0.76% to $367.55 million when
compared with the value of $370.35 million in last year. The levies from
the public sector increased by 0.27% to $193.99 million, and that from
the private sector decreased by 1.88% to $173.43 million. On the other
hand, levies from the quarry industry dropped from $0.14 million to
$0.13 million.

Total investment income was $57.31 million, which showed an increase
of $7.55 million or 15.17% compared with $49.76 million of last year.
The interest income of certificate of deposits, bonds and fixed deposits
increased by 23.43% or $8.04 million to $42.35 million. The dividend
income decreased slightly from $15.45 million to $14.96 million.

After the sale of old office in the Hing Yip Commercial Centre by open
tender, a profit of $36.67 million was recorded. Other income was
$0.74 million. As a whole, total income was $442.74 million, showing
an increase of $21.08 million or 5% from 2017.

On the total expenditure, it increased by 6.35% to $289.30 million.
Total compensation of $213.46 million showed an increase of $9.05
million or 4.43% from 2017.

Moreover, a total of $43.96 million was spent for research, prevention
and rehabilitation, which was $3.18 million or 7.79% more than
2017. The increase was partly due to the payment of $1.7 million for
the pilot Dust Removal System Subsidized Scheme and the additional
payments of $0.8 million for the recruitment and $0.7 million for the
examination of workers under the Medical Surveillance Programme for
Pneumoconiosis/Mesothelioma.

To sum up, $265.10 million or 91.63% of the total expenditure of
the Board were paid as compensation, medical examination, research,
prevention and rehabilitation for the benefit of patients and workers.

The surplus of income over expenditure for the year was $153.44
million, which was $3.82 million or 2.55% more than the previous
year. The balance of accumulated fund was at the record high level of
$2,584.07 million.

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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COMMITTEE ON FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION
MBRITRESS

Regarding the investment of reserves, about 85% of the surplus
funds were placed on certificate of deposits, bonds and fixed deposit
at short to long-term fixed rates in order to ensure a relatively stable
interest income. The certificate of deposits and bonds will be held to
maturity, while the remaining 15% of the surplus funds were invested
in listed shares and the Tracker Fund for dividend income and long-
term investment purposes. In 2018, the global financial markets
remained very volatile, and thereby increased the risk of investment.
The Committee had been closely monitoring the investment portfolios
and achieved satisfactory results on investments.

In 2017, the Board decided to develop a Case Management System
to collect the information of patients on their rehabilitation needs for
providing suitable rehabilitation services to them. In 2018, the system
development was completed and it has commenced operation. A total
of $1.14 million was paid for hardware and software development.

In June 2018, the Board submitted its annual report in 2017 for tabling
in the Legislative Council. The Estimates of Income and Expenditure
together with the Yearly Programme for 2019 were also submitted
in December 2018 for approval by the Government in accordance
with the provision of the Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma
(Compensation) Ordinance.

As the authorized paying agent of the Pneumoconiosis Ex Gratia Fund
("the Fund"), the Board presented the Fund's interim and final reports
together with the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2018 which were audited by the Director of Audit and approved by the
Government.

Lastly, the Committee sincerely takes this opportunity to thank
members for having contributed their valuable advice and efforts in
directing the finance and administration affairs of the Board.
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COMMITTEE ON LEVY & COMPENSATION
BREBEZES

Lev

On 2y7 June 2018, a resolution was passed by the Legislative Council
(LegCo) under Section 36 of the Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma
(Compensation) Ordinance (PMCO) to raise the levy threshold from $1
million to $3 million, and the new threshold came into effect on 30 July
2018.

The overall levy income in 2018 was decreased by 0.76% to $367.55
million. The private sector had a decrease of 1.88% to $173.43 million
(2017: $176.74 million). The public sector had a slight increase of
0.27% to $193.99 million versus $193.47 million in the previous year.

The Board recorded $24.97 million of levy income from MTR projects,
indicated a 51.53% drop from the previous year of $51.52 million.
With only one quarry site operating in Hong Kong, the levy income
from quarry industry dropped slightly from $0.14 million to $0.13
million.

The construction project at Kai Tak Development and the Airport
Development scheme contributed levy income of $24.62 million, an
increase of $12.71 million from $11.91 million in 2017, representing an
increase of 106.72%. Levy income from West Kowloon Cultural District
was decreased from $2.50 million to $2.03 million, representing a drop
of 18.80%.

Compensation

The number of new cases recorded in 2018 was 71, including 59
Silicosis, 10 Mesothelioma and 2 Asbestosis cases. The number of
patients receiving monthly compensation at year end decreased from
1,490 in 2017 to 1,456 in 2018.

On 1 February, 2018, a resolution was passed at the LegCo to increase
the maximum daily rates of reimbursable medical expenses under the
PMCO with effect from 9 February 2018. The maximum daily rate was
increased from $200 to $300 for in-patient or out-patient treatment,
and the maximum daily rate was increased from $280 to $370 for in-
patient and out-patient treatment received on the same day. The total
expenditure of medical expenses was $2.27 million in 2018, consisting
of $1.23 million (54%) from Chinese Medicine and $1.04 million (46%)
from Western Medicine. In 2017, the total expenditure of medical
expense was $2.01 million.
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COMMITTEE ON LEVY & COMPENSATION
BRRBEEZRS

The total expenditure of compensation was $213.46 million, MEARZA-_E—T=A0+/ &8t 2017
representing an increase of 4.43% as compared with $204.41 million F27 —(ETWNHMN+—ET&N4.43% -
in 2017.

In addition, during the Annual Interview with our patients, the Iit9h  ESZESERFE REAEHELR
Board conducted a survey on patients’ level of satisfaction on the FmEE#EITT —HEESEHAE  RAFHL T
Compensation Services. The average score given by patients was  #/H 2017 FH91.3 DA E 2018 FHI93.09
increased from 91.3 in 2017 to 93.0 in 2018.

To end this report, sincere thanks were given to all the Committee 1% @ BORMEE S EK EEMR R MEHE

members for their contributions in the areas of Levy and f{EHEIEREf -
Compensation.
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COMMITTEE ON RESEARCH
MREES

‘Practical value’ is our prime consideration. To receive the funding from
the Board, projects should demonstrate potential to bring practical
benefits to any of the target groups including our patients, the medical
society, those high-risk groups or the general public as a whole. The
Research Committee, with a team of professional members including
respiratory specialists, occupational hygienists and experienced
professional working in the construction industry, is confident to
continue the good works done in previous years for contributing to
various areas related to pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma in Hong
Kong. The following table summarises the work that the Committee
achieved in 2018:

[EREE|AMRZESHEEEE - FiL - %k
EBERENEEEEATRNENSE  BFERA -
BEERR  sRBRARNETRABRSREERENZ
B ATREAEESESCZESE - HIRZESHh—
BHEEATEETFRAARIEL  BEFEMRE
BEERALELRNEEATER ZEEERE
DIEEBEESHREE - EENIPEERITE R KE
FEMAABRELRERR - WTERBETEZES
2018 FH)TAE :

The Committee approved three applications during the year, in which
two target for better management of our patients and the caregivers.
The other one is a follow-up study on mesothelioma immunotherapy
treatment aiming to open more unknowns in this incurable disease
with poor prognosis so far.

The accumulation of knowledge, partly contributed by the successful
research projects, leads us to provide better and better management
of our patients. However, there are more to explore for further
improvement. Sleep problem is a good example. While sleep problems
are common in the elderly, it was found in our particular group
of pneumoconiosis patients that sleep deprivation and disrupted
circadian rhythm are common among them. Recent research in general
population showed that sleep deprivation and decreased amplitude
of circadian rhythm increased the risk of dementia/mild cognitive
impairment. However, it remains uncertain if population-based research
can be directly generalised to the pneumoconiosis patients who have
less healthy lungs than the general population. The study conducted
by Professor Shelly Tse from The Chinese University of Hong Kong
(CUHK) entitled “Sleep deprivation, circadian disruption and mild
cognitive impairment among patients with silicosis in Hong Kong” is
going to address this identified knowledge gap based on a large-scale
survey among pneumoconiosis patients in Hong Kong using community
participants as the reference. The project shall be able to provide
fundamental information to support future evidence-based intervention
programmes on improving sleep and cognitive health among our
patients.
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COMMITTEE ON RESEARCH
MREES

As pneumoconiosis is a chronic disease and most of our patients are
elderly with co-morbid diseases, long term and committed supports
are required. In this regard, family caregivers are considered as an
invaluable care resource in the social care delivery system. The Board
has long recognised the important role played by the caregivers and
hence a separate rehabilitation programme has been opened for
them. In research perspective, the Committee approved a project
entitled “The experience of patients and family caregivers in managing
pneumoconiosis in the family context: An exploratory qualitative
study” conducted by Dr Polly Li from CUHK. The study aims to explore
the illness experience and needs of patients with pneumoconiosis
and the caregiving experience of their respective family caregivers
through home visits. The findings will hopefully provide important
insight, perhaps to our experts in the rehabilitation committee, into the
development of an effective and tailor-made support programme to
our patients.

With encouraging results obtained by Professor Chen Zhi Wei of The
University of Hong Kong (HKU) in two of his previous studies (one
completed during the year) funded by the Board, the Committee
approved a follow-up study on “Enhancing immunotherapeutic efficacy
of mesothelioma by overcoming MDSC-mediated immunosuppression”
this year. Although there is still a long way to go developing an
effective immunotherapy treatment, members are pleased to see
the progress made these years bringing them hopes for effective
immunotherapy treatment in the future.

In addition to the above projects, three other projects were completed
during the year. While the one conducted by Dr Hebert Pang from
HKU had introduced a new prognostic model predicting prognosis
of mesothelioma patients, the other projects conducted by Professor
Carman Chan from CUHK and Dr S K Lam from HKU respectively had
also brought strong scientific evidence, laying grounds for further
researches and leading us closer and closer to transfer our research
results from publications to actions.

The committee shares the same belief of our previous members, and is
optimistic that our research results would eventually bring our patients
and those high-risk workers to a better world one day.
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COMMITTEE ON REHABILITATION
BERZRY

The Board has a well-established framework for providing diversified
while tailor-made services to the cohort of about 1,460 patients
and their family members. With the changing needs of our patients,
our services also closely follow the momentum of development.
The Rehabilitation Committee is dedicated to taking care of the
rehabilitation needs of patients. In 2018, the Board and her partners
continued to conduct programmes for improving the physical,
psychological and social functions of various groups of patients.
Our Case Managers continued to maintain frequent contact with
patients and strengthen the rehabilitation services by providing their
professional support to the above programmes.

Entering the third year of operation, we are glad to note that
the number of patients joining the Comprehensive Community
Rehabilitation (CCR) Programme and maintaining regular exercises in
rehabilitation exercise centres had been on a stable trend. During the
year, 217 patients completed the preliminary assessment, making up
a total of 446 (about one-third of our patients) having received the
rehabilitation assessments since September 2016. During the year, a
total of 285 patients were conducting exercises in seven commissioned
rehabilitation exercise centres located in different districts in Hong
Kong. As a new programme which has just launched for less than
3 years, we take pride in the programme’s attaining its desired goal
by having a satisfactory enrollment rate and a substantial number of
patients have benefitted from the exercise sessions.

To evaluate the success of a programme, number of participants is far
from being the sole factor. As patients will undergo reassessments after
joining the programme for a period of time (usually 3 months), the
attainment of the programme is also evidenced by patients’ progress
in their overall well-being. Data obtained during the 12 months from
September 2017 - September 2018 revealed that out of the 99
participants who had completed at least 3 months of regular exercises,
54 participants (55%) had shown improvement in 6-Minute Walk Test,
and 23 participants (23%) had shown improvement in Max Handgrip
Strength. With the improvement in physical conditions, 13 participants
(13%) were recommended to upgrade the exercise level. These results
did give us confidence to continue promoting the CCR to our patients.
For patients who are not physically fit to travel to rehabilitation
exercise centres for doing exercises, we have engaged the service of
outsourced physiotherapists to provide Home Physiotherapy Services
to them. During the year, 39 patients joined the services and a total of
262 training sessions were carried out in patients’ homes. In addition,
we provided funding support to various rehabilitation programmes
tailor-made for patients. One example was a series of five Tai Chi
courses run by Pneumoconiosis Mutual Aid Association (PMAA) in
different districts through sponsorship of funding.
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COMMITTEE ON REHABILITATION
EEREZRE

Physical health is certainly important to our patients but maintaining
psychological and social health are equally crucial to them. Through a
tendering process, the Board commissioned PMAA to provide social
and psychological supporting services to our patients with psychological
and social problems. During the year, 152 cases had received a total of
800 home visits attended by professional social workers aiming to solve
or ease the social and psychological problems faced by them.

As pneumoconiosis is a chronic disease, carers play an important role in
enhancing both the physical and psychological health of patients in the
family context. It is generally agreed that the care and support given
by carers would contribute much to improving patients’ conditions. In
view of this, the Committee supported sponsorship funding to launch
the “Carers’ Support Programme” by PMAA. Since its commencement
in August to December 2018, 157 home visits were arranged for 46
cases. In addition, with the professional support by The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University School of Nursing, three workshops with four
sessions each were arranged for a total of the 39 carers to enhance
their caring skills.

The Committee considers that in the long run, the success of
rehabilitation mainly depends on four major factors, being the
professional design of programme, the dedication of front-line staff,
the strong technical support behind and the good response of patients.
Comprising professionals who are experts in rehabilitation matters,
our Committee is dedicated to providing the best holistic care to
patients. In achieving our goals, the devoted support from our frontline
staff including Case Managers and professional staff from our service
partners are indispensable. With the comprehensive database provided
by the Case Management System developed in 2018, the Committee
strived to collect systematic and updated information on patients’
rehabilitation progress in order to provide the best intervention and
services to them.

To conclude, the Committee would like to express our heartfelt
gratitude to our members for materialising all the above work.
The Committee will continue to explore every opportunity for
further enhancing our services, and providing quality rehabilitation
programmes to our patients.
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COMMITTEE ON REHABILITATION
EREEY

G

Rehabilitation Programme —
Exercise Training
HEFAERE —
EEPIRER

1
* Comprehensive Community
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COMMITTEE ON REHABILITATION
fRZEY

Tai Chi Class
AR

The Chairman of Committee on Rehabilitation,
Mr Wilfred Wong Kam-pui, JP, had a meeting with patients
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COMMITTEE ON PREVENTION
HEREEE

The construction industry plays an imperative role in the economic
development of Hong Kong and provides many employment
opportunities. To further consolidate Hong Kong's strength in the
construction industry, a safe and healthy working environment is of
paramount importance.

However, construction sites may contain various kinds of potential
health hazards that will cause occupational diseases, such as silica dust
and asbestos dust. If proper precautions are not taken, the workers will
have the opportunity to contract pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma.
Nowadays, pneumoconiosis is still one of the most common
occupational diseases in Hong Kong, in which most of the patients
have been/currently engaging in the construction industry. Therefore,
when performing the dust-generating processes, such as cutting,
grinding and drilling, the employers and workers must implement
effective dust control measures.

To encourage small and medium-sized enterprises engaged in the
construction, renovation and maintenance works industries to use
the dust reduction tools, the Prevention Committee first launched
the “Cordless Drill with Dust Removal System Subsidy Scheme for
Small and Medium-sized Enterprises engaged in the Construction,
Renovation and Maintenance Works Industries” in 2018, subsidising
the eligible companies to purchase suitable cordless drills with dust
removal systems. Through the scheme, the Prevention Committee
hopes that the employers and workers will understand the importance
of “dust reduction at source” in preventing pneumoconiosis. The
programme received an overwhelming response from the industries,
with more than 800 applications. The Prevention Committee also found
through questionnaires that all the companies surveyed were satisfied
with the effectiveness of the dust reduction tools and 97% said that
they would consider purchasing dust removal systems at their own
expense for employees’ use if the systems are no longer usable due to
wear and tear. This shows that this programme not only strengthens
the awareness of small and medium-sized enterprises to prevent
pneumoconiosis, but also makes changes in their behaviors.

In addition, the Board continued to provide trainings on prevention of
pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma through various channels in 2018.
We co-organised a number of education and promotional activities
with the Labour Department, the Occupational Safety and Health
Council, the Construction Industry Council and related organisations.
In order to offer audiences with different kinds of trainings that truly
meet their needs, various training activities with very flexible settings,
including a total of 11 full-day courses jointly organised with the
Occupational Safety and Health Council, and a total of 119 seminars at
different construction sites in Hong Kong were held to enable workers
receiving prevention information at sites with minimal travel.

18 Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board ANNUAL REPORT 2018

BEXGERANEERRTDEERZAG - WiEH
TAIRERE - RE—PREBTEEREXRTE
WEY  ZENMRENIIFREEREE -

A BEHBREEE NP BERNBRIRE - f
W R AIRE - IR BREVEE WIEHEE -
TREB#ESE EIMERIUE RN EME - R
ERNERDARTETRNBERZ — EFK
MOBEDE REEREE - At - BHETE
BRI - BEME - TE - #FLE - AR
BB i B BRI

REBNFEREXRRKREEETENT/NELE
ERAMEREEREN TR  AHZBEEN2018F
BRED [P RAREEREREZERNETA
BBt BBABERANTPECXBEAEN
REAFREENIMRNEEERE - BHZEEH
BEBEEFE - FAREINRIRARL RE
BE | BRRMMERTERNERNE - fTEIRER
A REERBL - BHZREEREREN \BZNHH
FeoH®R BHZEENEBRRMESHE  BEM
BEXFRAAHYERETIANYRRRBE  Eh
7% ZHRARTIMAKRASERERENRER
MAEHRER 2EREBRESEREHETH
B o mub A Rest 8 MEISR T R/ NI Y
BRI ERNER  EEERSHMANTR
BFFE o

SEoh - P Z E R 2018 FHEEFE BT FRBE
BMAITIAD FHEE R E s M R AR A T1E -
VRS TR BELZRER ZEXIENE
MRBAMSEHE LEREEY - BT EHETE
BENATREEEDAMMFTEANIGR - HPIPT
RHOBRIREHIEAEN  REREL S
RERAGMOEAGIRIEX 1S UREKER 2
BRRRETIMETH 1195 EE  BIRMEE
TESMEXERLER  MOFR -



COMMITTEE ON PREVENTION
BREEE

For the promotion programmes, the Prevention Committee continued
to implement the “Promotional Toolbox Scheme”. In 2018,
“Promotional Toolboxes” were sent to 269 main contractors with
newly commenced works. The toolbox contained posters, pamphlets
and respirators, facilitating contractors to promote the correct method
of preventing pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma for construction
workers at the site more effectively. Through the “Prevention of
Pneumoconiosis Site Beautification Campaign”, we also provided
site hoarding banners with prevention messages to beautify the
construction sites. We hope that such colorful hoarding banners can
remind construction workers to take preventive measures all the times.
These hoarding banners were sent to the construction sites, and there
were 99 construction sites participated during the year.

Apart from organising various types of activities, the Prevention Committee
also adopted various media and publicity channels this year, including TVB
Jade Channel, soccer matches, horse racing and financial TV programmes
at Cable TV and Now TV, Commercial Radio 1, Metro Radio, MTR stations
and trains, bus stops, Facebook and YouTube etc., to broadcast the
pneumoconiosis prevention advertisements and related information, so as
to convey the messages of prevention to citizens of all levels.

In order to achieve synergies, we continued to jointly organise the
“Occupational Health Award” with the Occupational Safety & Health
Council, the Labour Department, the Department of Health and the
Occupational Deafness Compensation Board. There were 31 companies
participating in the “Prevention of Pneumoconiosis Award” this year.
Special thanks were given to the participating organisations for their
contributions to the prevention of pneumoconiosis. We believe that
as long as we share and work together, we will be able to promote
a higher level of occupational safety and health of the construction
industry so as to provide a safer and healthier working environment for
construction workers.

As for occupational health, since pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma
are chronic diseases, the initial symptoms are not obvious and hence
difficult to diagnose. Therefore, the Prevention Committee has been
carrying out the “Medical Surveillance Programme for Pneumoconiosis/
Mesothelioma” since November 2011. Through regular physical
examinations, the programme not only helps construction workers
detect chest or other problems and receive corresponding treatments
as soon as possible, but also makes them pay more attention to their
health. Up to the end of 2018, more than 30,000 workers in the
construction industry have benefited from this service. Some of them
were found to have unfortunately suffered from pneumoconiosis or
mesothelioma at the early stages, and were arranged for diagnosis and
treatment.

To prevent pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma, it really depends on
the concerted efforts and full support of the employer, employee, the
Government and all stakeholders. Finally, the Prevention Committee
would like to take this opportunity to sincerely thank the partners
and the industry for their support so that our prevention work can be
carried out smoothly. We hope that everyone can continue to work
together to achieve more fruitful results in the coming year.
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COMMITTEE ON PREVENTION

The Board first launched the “Cordless Drill with
Dust Removal System Subsidy Scheme for Small
and Medium-sized Enterprises engaged in the

Construction, Renovation & Maintenance Works

R EEL AR Industries” in 2018, subsidising the eligible
F}Eﬁi‘t FREEMREMNENEERR companies to purchase suitable cordless drills with
o [ | oo s dust removal systems
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB AR E

TO THE MEMBERS OF PNEUMOCONIOSIS COMPENSATION FUND
BOARD

(Established in Hong Kong under the Pneumoconiosis and
Mesothelioma (Compensation) Ordinance)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Pneumoconiosis
Compensation Fund Board (“the Board”) set out on pages 25 to 73,
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December
2018, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in funds and reserves and the cash flow statement for the year
then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the financial position of the Board as at 31 December 2018 and of its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA™).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Board in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the financial statements
and auditor’s report thereon

The Board members are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report,
other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB AR E

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Board members for the
financial statements

The Board members are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and for such internal control as the Board members
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board members are
responsible for assessing the Board's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board members
either intend to liquidate the Board or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB AR E

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Board'’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Board members.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board members’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Board’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Board to cease to continue as
a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board members regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Charter Road
Central, Hong Kong
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
BRI

At 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
#2018F 12 A31H (ABTIIR)

2017
(Note)
(Hf7%)
$
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FEREBEE

Property, plant and equipment YDEE - HEES KRR 5 22,364,127 22,823,157
Intangible assets EmEE 6 707,072 -
Held-to-maturity financial assets HERIBAZ SEE 8 = 784,943,227
Held-to-collect debt securities TRER SRR ANGT 2 5 YEUCER
at amortised cost 2 EBES 8 784,960,938 =
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEHESREE 9 = 372,638,430
Financial assets at fair value through BARBEFAEMEE
other comprehensive income Wiz SREE 9 200,357,947 -
Financial assets at fair value BARBET ABR
through profit or loss ZERMEE 9 127,163,075 =
1,135,553,159 1,180,404,814
Current assets TENEE
Accounts receivable FEUER TR 10 20,056,603 12,740,908
Interest receivables FEUA 2 18,358,312 13,647,203
Deposits and prepayments e REMNFIE 82,193 71,913
Advance payment for compensation EBLmES 503,188 446,688
Held-to-maturity financial assets BEEREBSRmEE 8 - 100,000,000
Fixed deposits with original maturity R FE 1B = & A & 21 83
over three months 2 EHTERR 11 1,537,246,257 1,265,414,399
Cash and cash equivalents B RBELEED 12 14,712,113 14,035,438
1,590,958,666 1,406,356,549
Assets classified as held for sale PEERBEHEZEE 13 - 6,607,674
1,590,958,666 1,412,964,223
Total assets wmEE 2,726,511,825 2,593,369,037
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

BRI AR

At 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

R2018E 12 A31 8 (LAETAIR)

2017
(Note)
(BF3E)
$
FUNDS AND LIABILITIES HEHeREE
Funds and reserves HEeR#E 14
Accumulated fund 2EES 2,584,069,802 2,373,535,661
Research fund HEES 12,897,987 14,679,761
Prevention fund T Ee 27,309,079 35,643,728
Rehabilitation fund EERES 13,122,931 14,155,780
Computer systems fund BIRGED 707,072 -
Capital reserve BINGEE 22,364,127 29,430,831
Investment reserve A 56,295,392 122,616,957
Total funds and reserves HeNHHBHAR 2,716,766,390 2,590,062,718
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liability FREAE
Provision for long service payments RERHG B E 111,000 110,000
Current liability REBAR
Accruals and other payables FESTERIE K EoAth FE A~ /I8 15 9,634,435 3,196,319
Total liabilities FES=NE 9,745,435 3,306,319
Total funds and liabilities HEeRaEHEE 2,726,511,825 2,593,369,037

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board members on 17 June

2019

Chairman

R2019F6 A17HHRESZESL B ERIKHE

iE S

TE

Note: The Board has initially applied HKFRS 9 at 1 January 2018. Under the  Kist : E€Z B €M 20184 1 B 1 BE X ER(EEHE
transition methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See MERERDE I - BEBEFTERACBEFE LR
note 2.2(a)(i). BERAFEY - B2 EE2.2)3) ©

£33N E73AZMERZEVHIRER AR -

The notes on pages 31 to 73 form part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

EHEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

EHZE20185F12 A3 AILLFE

(BABTTHIR)

Revenue
Levy income

Other income/(loss)
Interest income on:
— Bank deposits
— Held-to-maturity financial assets
— Held-to-collect debt securities
at amortised cost
Dividend income from listed securities

Ex-gratia fund administration charge received

Penalty on late payments of levies

Gain on disposal of assets classified
as held for sale

Rental income

Sundry income

Fair value loss on financial assets at

fair value through profit or loss

Expenditure

Operating and administrative expenditures:

— Pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma
compensations

— Project expenses

— Employee benefit expenses

— Administrative expenses

— Medical examination fees

— Depreciation

— Amortisation of intangible assets

— Capital expenditure

Surplus for the year

A
BEUA 16

Hiplw A/ (E18)
RTFIREZFIBHA
- RITTER
-BEERISCEREE
— R AGT R RER
ZEBES
BB LM EHFATERSMA
REFESMERZITRER
EE BB ATIRER 2 15K
HESERFELECEE
Pl 6o 13
LA
FEEUA
BARBEMABRSERMEE
ZAREEESR 9

X
BERTBRAY
- R AR R

B B e
- EBHT
- BB H RERFEX 17
- THRAX 18
-#GER 19
-HE 5
- B EERH 6
- BARRX

FERHR

2017
(Note (i)

(HFEEG)
$

367,551,589 370,349,899
24,719,689 22,674,592
= 11,636,513
17,629,225 =
14,959,324 15,449,511
138,148 128,875
456,687 396,143
36,672,326 -
106,725 1,024,560
32,726 1
(19,526,000) =
75,188,850 51,310,195
213,463,914 204,407,453
43,955,272 41,326,804
15,279,495 14,937,995
7,229,652 1,951,867
7,684,407 7,441,270
922,610 1,013,517
50,505 =
714,578 958,934
289,300,433 272,037,840
153,440,006 149,622,254

RN ERMEESZES
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

EHWER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HZE2018F12A31HIEFE  (LAEBTLIIR)

2017
(Note (i)
(PRF=E )
$
Surplus for the year FERER 153,440,006 149,622,254
Other comprehensive income for the year FEH 2 HEIkE
Item that will not be reclassified to profit TEETHHE
or loss: ERm A -
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair value A RENIR AL BE AEM
through other comprehensive income in EHNEZEREELDN
investment reserve (non-recycling) EEEE (TrER) 9 (26,736,334) -
Item that may be reclassified to profit or loss: A E# #HEZ 18 ZBR -
Fair value gain on available-for-sale financial ~ RERKEBAAHLELREE
assets in investment reserve (recycling) DA EERE (AEE[)
(note (ii)) (B EE (ii)) 9 - 78,162,038
Total comprehensive income for the year 2F2HENFHAHE 126,703,672 227,784,292
Notes: Mzt -

(i) The Board has initially applied HKFRS 9 at 1 January 2018. Under the (i) HE&ZE8EM2018F 18 18 & KFERCESIBR

transition methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See

note 2.2(a)(i).

(i) This amount arose under the accounting policies applicable prior to 1 (i)
January 2018. As part of the opening balance adjustments as at 1 January
2018 the balance of this reserve has been reclassified to investment reserve

& ERER2018F1 A1 BRI ERANS
EE - EAR2018F1 A1 ZFE V&

SRANE O - RIBFRA 2 BB S - AR
R EH) o LB 2.2 -

R
HEZ

—&bn - WREBEHRCEN S EEREREB(TH
#o) BETEREMRRBHERT D EE2HEK
# o 2R 2.2(a)) °

(non-recycling) and will not be reclassified to comprehensive income in any
future periods. See note 2.2(a)(i).

EINETZAZMERZFNBRER ZAMERD ©

The notes on pages 31 to 73 form part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS AND RESERVES

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HZ2018F12A31HIEFE  (LABTLYIR)

Balance at 1 January 2017

Comprehensive income
Surplus for the year

Other comprehensive income
Fair value gain on available-for-sale
financial assets

Total comprehensive income

Balances at 31 December 2017 and
1 January 2018

Comprehensive income
Surplus for the year

Other comprehensive income

Fair value loss on financial assets at
fair value through other
comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Balance at 31 December 2018

The notes on pages 31 to 73 form part of these financial statements.

R20175F1 818 &8

g
= FERER

HitZ2E S
AHLEZ SREE
DA EERS

E2HWSEEE

20175128318 &
20181 1A &8

2K
EFERR

Hit2E =

BARBEF ARLBEEKES
LEREBEZ
DA EEEER

EHWEATE

72018512 B31 B &8k

Funds and
reserves

EE R #E
$

2,362,278,426

149,622,254

9 78,162,038

227,784,292

153,440,006

9 (26,736,334)

126,703,672

2,716,766,390

£33N E73AZMERZEFHIRKR ZAKED -
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
BEREBR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE20185F12A31HILFE  CABTTIIR)

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds from sale of assets classified as
held for sale

Purchases of property, plant and equipment

Expenditure on development of
computer systems

Purchases of held-to-maturity financial assets

(Increase)/decrease in fixed deposits with
original maturity over three months

Redemption of held-to-collect debt securities
at amortised cost/held-to-maturity
financial assets

Interest received

Dividends received

Net cash used in investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the year

EETBRINE
HEEEPEL RS 21(a)

HEERHEL CRERNFER

REAZDRLRE
HENBRFHELEZ

BEMSTIEA 13
BAME - MBS LRE
FBRERERL

X
BARAZIHZEREE 8
REBB=([ARIH

EEFR (), m
FBEIZE S ARt B R

B EES HRE

A eREE 8
YRERH B
YRR B

RERBMARSRLFR
RERRESEYFHEEM

RENZRER
ReEEMER

REZEZRER
ReEENAE 12

Note: The Board has initially applied HKFRS 9 at 1 January 2018. Under the BT
transition methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See

note 2.2(a)(i).

The notes on pages 31 to 73 form part of these financial statements.
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78,921,729 109,414,964
78,921,729 109,414,964
43,280,000 =
(463,580) =
(681,819) =

= (770,000,000)
(271,831,858) 387,415,929
100,000,000 235,000,000
37,637,805 31,697,286
13,814,398 14,414,244
(78,245,054) (101,472,541)
676,675 7,942,423
14,035,438 6,093,015
14,712,113 14,035,438

HEeZ8EMN2018F 1 A1 A NER(HEBMHE
AR NE O  RIEFMBAZBERE &K
AR TEY - FLHEME2.2)0) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R AR T aE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTIIR)

General information

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board (“the Board”) is
established with a role as a compensation body, and to engage in
the areas of rehabilitation, prevention and research in respect of
pneumoconiosis. The address of its registered office is 15/F Nam Wo
Hong Building, 148 Wing Lok Street, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong.

With the enactment of the Pneumoconiosis (Compensation)
(Amendment) Ordinance 1993 (“the Ordinance”) on 9 July 1993,
all those pneumoconiotics who were compensated by the Board
between 1 January 1981 and 8 July 1993 can make application to
the Board to receive further compensation and other payments under
the new compensation scheme. After re-assessment is made by the
Pneumoconiosis Medical Board and approval granted, the applicant
will receive monthly payments of compensation in respect of the
difference between the degree of incapacity determined by the
Pneumoconiosis Medical Board on the re-assessment and the degree
of permanent incapacity previously determined by the Board under
the Ordinance prior to its amendment.

From 9 July 1993 onwards, persons suffering from pneumoconiosis
receives monthly payments of compensation instead of a lump-sum
compensation. The Board's liability to compensation arises when
an applicant is assessed by the Pneumoconiosis Medical Board to
be suffering from pneumoconiosis and a certificate is issued by the
Commissioner for Labour of the applicant’s fulfilment of the residency
requirement.

On 18 April 2008, the Pneumoconiosis (Compensation) Ordinance
was amended to include provisions to provide compensation to
persons suffering from mesothelioma. Accordingly, the name of the
Pneumoconiosis (Compensation) Ordinance has been renamed as
the Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma (Compensation) Ordinance.
Applicants who are assessed by the Pneumoconiosis Medical Board
to be suffering from mesothelioma are subject to the same eligibility
criteria and payment of compensation which are consistent with
applicants suffering from pneumoconiosis.

On 1 September 2008, the Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma
(Compensation) Ordinance was further amended to allow patients
with pneumoconiosis or mesothelioma to seek treatment from
registered Chinese medicine practitioners and claim reimbursement
of the medical expenses and cost of medicines for the treatment of
pneumoconiosis or mesothelioma, subject to the maximum amount
of claims as prescribed in the Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma
(Compensation) Ordinance.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar, unless
otherwise stated.

— AR
FEENERAEESZES(UTHEIESZ
Be )Xy FZEEEAMEBRNERZHE
BEHERSHUEEZRZER  BHAAEET
B HEZ By WEEAMMIEARE FIRK
LA 148 SR AITRE 1548 ©

1993 F BRI E R (F1E) (BRT) EFID AT
FSFE [0 1) R 19934 7 A 9 B AR » 1551588
FrAER19814F1H1H 2199347 A8 H HI [
BHEESZECHEIHERNERES 1
ARAESZECHBMATMHERS - EREE
HE - -REIMERNERIEEZECETHE
REE  ESURASREGTEHZELRTE
BENTRE BARRASET A 2 AG B R 2 X AR T
ERE WRREMEBE 2 Zb - stEEANBZHES
B o

H1993F7A9RAR  EEMERTERZA
T AT AURER#(E - MIEE— IR IERE o RIRIE
Bl EERNERAGEZESH T E LIER
TIERIES THE RS HEEERES T
NEBTFEHRTEZRA  AIEERESEZES
HH1E -

2008F4 18R  (MEERNE R (FE)IEHIE
HEW - SRR BEEENATREBIEIEREZ
TAA o (FPEERM AR (FEMEHDZ B I EEE
2R A BRI & R K R B T (F 1B )& 51D - JEfb
EBRNERAEZESHEB LERBEZRA -
H BB IBRE 2 5 K 0] 4 (2 48 A1) B2 E fh b
ERNIEREETEER -

R 20089 A1 H « (FhEEEIE R &M & (1
E)EBDBIER SN - B LR ARERER
TMERKEEBRERPERD  TRELEE
CHERLE N BE(WERTE R & EEBE(H
EVMEBIDANFHA LRz ARBEER -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR T EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETTIIR)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1

2.2

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“"HKASs”) and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA™) and accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong. Significant accounting policies adopted by the
Board are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Board. Note 2.2(a) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Board for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that the
investments in debt and equity securities are stated at their fair
value as explained in note 2.9.

Non-current assets held for sale are stated at the lower of
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell (see note 2.8).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA SRR T EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LAVETTHIR)

EREREREEVMBREENHMEL
LBUBRERBEAZEZHE  UREE
hET N RARARE Z AR M FE 4 TR AL ©

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs
that have significant effect on the financial statements and
major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 4.

(a) Changes in accounting policies (a) BFBEZZE
The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and ERSHAMASERMRZENESE
amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the EEEA S BHEERER I
current accounting period of the Board. Of these, the (BAMBHREEADRECEBI B
following developments are relevant to the Board's EHERDZERT o Hep - AT AR
financial statements: HESZEG G WETIER -

(i)  HKFRS 9, Financial instruments () (BBVBEREEANEIW - 2
BTA

(i) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (i) (BEPBREERIE 155 -
KEEFEFE W

ESZ BV ERMENRAGEH
fel 180 AR A SR 2 AR T T AR Bl SR R -

The Board has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

(BEVEREERDE I - 2
BT A
(CEBVIEREERDE 9 SRAUL

(i)  HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (i)

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39, Financial instruments:

recognition and measurement. It sets out the
requirements for recognising and measuring
financial assets, financial liabilities and some
contracts to buy or sell non-financial items.

The Board has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively to
items that existed at 1 January 2018 in accordance
with the transition requirements. The Board has
recognised the cumulative effect of initial application
as an adjustment to the opening funds and
reserves at 1 January 2018. Therefore, comparative
information continues to be reported under HKAS
39.

RN ERMEESLZES
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR AR BT RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTIIR)

The following table summarises the impact of
transition to HKFRS 9 on funds and reserves at 1

January 2018.

Accumulated fund

Transferred from investment reserve
(recycling) relating to financial assets
now measured at FVPL and increase
in accumulated fund at 1 January 2018

Investment reserve (recycling)

Transferred to accumulated fund relating
to financial assets now measured at FVPL

Transferred to investment reserve
(non-recycling) relating to equity
securities now measured at FVOCI

Net decrease in investment reserve
(recycling) at 1 January 2018

Investment reserve (non-recycling)

Transferred from investment reserve
(recycling) relating to equity securities
now measured at FVOCI and increase
in investment reserve (non-recycling)
at 1 January 2018

Further details of the nature and effect of the

TERBMBER(EBYHHRE
ER)EIHEE 2018F1A1H

ZEENFHBIEE -

2RES
R AR EEF ARG E
ZEBEERBRERB

(RrEEmE ) B KA 201841 A 1H

2 RIEESIE NN

RERE (THEE)

BREESREAREE ABSHE
ZEBEERBRRES

HEESREAABE AL MZE
Wt B2 RAES A KA
fFé g (R rT [ )

R2018%1 A1 B2 RARHE
(A8 E]) B 558

RERE (TEDR)
BB ARBEE AL R EYES
PR ZBRAFE LB R ERE

39,585,231

(39,585,231)
(83,031,726)

(122,616,957)

(RrEEE ) B KA 201841 A 18

Z AR (TATEE) i

83,031,726

changes to previous accounting policies and the
transition approach are set out below:

A.  Classification of financial assets and financial
liabilities
HKFRS 9 categorises financial assets into three
principal classification categories: measured
at amortised cost, at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) and at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVPL"). These
supersede HKAS 39's categories of held-to
maturity investments, loans and receivables,
available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets measured at FVPL. The classification of
financial assets under HKFRS 9 is based on
the business model under which the financial
asset is managed and its contractual cash flow
characteristics.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRR T EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA TTYIR)

The following table shows the original TRERRBEEES
measurement categories for each class of LRNEIORFMNESE
the Board’s financial assets under HKAS 39 BESREERACZERRE
and reconciles the carrying amounts of those FES R URE(CEE
financial assets determined in accordance with SEHEBINEIORME T
HKAS 39 to those determined in accordance ZETMEECRHEER
with HKFRS 9. RIB(E B B RELER]D

FOMMETZEEERE

TR -

HKAS 39 carrying HKFRS 9 carrying
amount at amount at

31 December 2017 Reclassification 1 January 2018
(BREEa) (BRUBEERER)

F39KR20175F F9%R201851 7
12A31BZRAEE 1R 2R
$ $

Financial assets carried at amortised cost ~ ZEEHATIHZ ERHEE
Held-to-collect debt securities (note (i) FEWE 2 BE S (M)

— Non-current portion —3EnaHH - 784,943,227 784,943,227
- Current portion — e - 100,000,000 100,000,000

= 884,943,227 884,943,227

Financial assets measured at FVOCI BRARBEGARMRE
(non-recyclable) BE B EBEE
(FAER)
Equity securities (note (i) FrAzE# (B3 i) - 225,949,355 225,949,355
Financial assets carried at FVPL BRARBETABRIE
LEREE
Units in unit trust (note (i) BI{Eat2 BA (3 i) - 146,689,075 146,689,075

Financial assets classified as available- RE(BAEER)E30H
for-sale under HKAS 39 (notes (ii), (iii)) AEATHHEZ SR

B (W i) i) 372,638,430 (372,638,430) -
Financial assets classified as held-to- RE(EBEHER)E9%
maturity under HKAS 39 (note (i)) AEEEEZSER
G ED)
—Non-current portion R i Ui 784,943,227 (784,943,227) =
— Current portion —REHH 100,000,000 (100,000,000) =

884,943,227 (884,943,227 -

R ERMEESRE

23
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR AR BT RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETTIIR)

Notes:

(i) Under HKAS 39, certificates of deposits were
classified as held-to-maturity financial assets.
They are classified as held-to-collect debt
securities at amortised cost under HKFRS 9,
as the investment is held for the collection of
contractual cash flows.

(ii) Under HKAS 39, listed equity securities were
classified as available-for-sale financial assets.
They are eligible for and designated at FVOCI
by the Board under HKFRS 9, as the investment
is not held for trading purposes (see note 9).

(i)  Under HKAS 39, units in unit trust were
classified as available-for-sale financial assets.
They are classified as at FVPL under HKFRS 9.

For an explanation of how the Board classifies
and measures financial assets and recognises
related gains and losses under HKFRS 9, see
respective accounting policy notes in notes 2.9,
2.11,2.12 and 2.13.

The measurement categories for all financial
liabilities remain the same. The carrying
amounts for all financial liabilities at 1 January
2018 have not been impacted by the initial
application of HKFRS 9.

The Board did not designate or de-designate
any financial asset or financial liability at FVPL
at 1 January 2018.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR R BT EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LAVETTHIR)

Credit losses

HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model
in HKAS 39 with the “expected credit loss”
("ECL") model. The ECL model requires an
ongoing measurement of credit risk associated
with a financial asset and therefore recognises
ECLs earlier than under the “incurred loss”
accounting model in HKAS 39.

The Board applies the new ECL model to
the financial assets measured at amortised
cost (including cash and cash equivalents,
accounts receivable, interest receivables,
deposits and prepayments, advance payment
for compensation, fixed deposits with original
maturity over three months and held-to-collect
debt securities at amoritised cost).

For further details on the Board’s accounting
policy for accounting for credit losses, see
notes 2.11 and 2.12.

Transition

Changes in accounting policies resulting from
the adoption of HKFRS 9 have been applied
retrospectively, except as described below:

- Information relating to comparative
periods has not been restated.
Differences in the carrying amounts
of financial assets resulting from the
adoption of HKFRS 9 are recognised in
funds and reserves as at 1 January 2018.
Accordingly, the information presented
for 2017 continues to be reported
under HKAS 39 and thus may not be
comparable with the current period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR T aE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LAVEBTTHIR)

(ii)

—  The following assessments have been
made on the basis of the facts and
circumstances that existed at 1 January
2018 (the date of initial application of
HKFRS 9 by the Board):

- the determination of the business
model within which a financial
asset is held; and

- the designation of certain
investments in equity instruments
not held for trading to be classified
as at FVOCI (non-recycling).

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework
for recognising revenue and some costs from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 replaces HKAS
18, Revenue, which covered revenue arising from
sale of goods and rendering of services, and HKAS
11, Construction contracts, which specified the
accounting for construction contracts.

HKFRS 15 also introduces additional qualitative
and quantitative disclosure requirements which
aim to enable users of the financial statements
to understand the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from
contracts with customers.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 does not have any
material impact on the financial position and the
financial result of the Board.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R AR T EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTIIR)

(b) Possible impact of amendments, new standards and (b) BEZE2018%F 12531 HIFFEEH M

interpretations issued but not yet effective for the
year ended 31 December 2018

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new
standards and interpretations which are not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2018 and which have not
been adopted in these financial statements. These include
the following which may be relevant to the Board.

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

HKFRS 16, Leases 1 January 2019

Annual Improvements to 1 January 2019
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

The Board is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards
and interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. While the assessment has been substantially
completed, the actual impact upon the initial adoption
of the standards may differ as the assessment completed
to date is based on the information currently available to
the Board, and further impacts may be identified before
the standards are initially applied in the Board's financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2019. Further
details of the expected impacts are discussed below.

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in notes 2.4 and 2.21, currently the Board
classifies leases into finance leases and operating leases
and accounts for the lease arrangements differently,
depending on the classification of the lease. The Board
enters into some leases as the lessor and others as the
lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the
way that the Board account for its rights and obligations
under a lease when it is the lessor under the lease.
However, once HKFRS 16 is adopted, the Board will no
longer distinguish between finance leases and operating
leases when it is the lessee under the lease. Instead,
subject to practical expedients, the Board will be required
to account for all leases of more than 12 months in a
similar way to current finance lease accounting.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR T EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETTIIR)

2.3

2.4

The application of the new accounting model is expected
to lead to an increase in both assets and liabilities and to
impact on the timing of the expense recognition in the
statement of comprehensive income over the period of the
lease.

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2019. At 31 December 2018, the Board
did not have any operating lease commitment as a lessee,
and accordingly the adoption of HKFRS 16 will not have
material impact on the financial statements in the period
of initial application.

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of the Board
are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Board operates (“the functional
currency”). The financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar, which is the Board’s functional and presentation
currency.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Board and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for
as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to comprehensive income
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences
amortisation from the time when the land interest becomes
available for its intended use. Amortisation on leasehold land
classified as finance lease and depreciation on other assets are
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their costs,
net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives, as
follows:

Leasehold land classified
as finance lease
Leasehold improvements

Shorter of remaining lease term
or useful life of 50 years

Shorter of the lease period or
useful life of 10 years

50 years

5 years

Buildings
Computer equipment
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R AR T aE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LAVETTHIR)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount (note 2.7).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised in
comprehensive income.
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2.5 Property for rental 2.5 HEWE
Property for rental is held for long-term rental yields and is not LHEMENEARBEE R - BXIH
occupied by the Board. Property for rental comprises leasehold EeZEgHA - HAMERESHAR
land classified as finance lease and building. BHEHELIWRIETF -
The Board has adopted the cost model in accordance with E2ZEg N EB T ERDEMNKAR
HKFRS to account for the property for rental. The property R ZEARR o YUK AR
for rental is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and 2EMERREBESE  WERHBTHA
impairment losses and is depreciated at a rate sufficient to write B ASOF M AIERAER s REER
off its carrying amount over the shorter of remaining lease term WEBEHERmS RN ERGAERE -
or its estimated useful life of 50 years.

2.6 Intangible assets 26 BEEE

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure on development
activities is capitalised if the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible and the Board has sufficient resources
and the intention to complete development. The expenditure
capitalised includes the costs of materials, direct labour, and
an appropriate proportion of overheads and borrowing costs,
where applicable. Capitalised development costs are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see
note 2.7). Other development expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Board are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see note 2.7).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’
estimated useful lives. The following intangible assets with finite
useful lives are amortised from the date they are available for
use and their estimated useful lives are as follows:
- Computer software 5 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR T aE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTIIR)

2.7

2.8

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to amortisation are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows which are largely independent of the cash
inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of
the reporting period.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying
amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use and a sale is considered
highly probable. They are measured at the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, except for
assets such as assets arising from employee benefits, financial
assets and investment properties that are carried at fair value
and contractual rights under insurance contracts, which are
specifically exempt from this requirement.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent
write-down of the asset to fair value less costs to sell. A gain
is recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less
costs to sell of an asset, but not in excess of any cumulative
impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or loss not
previously recognised by the date of the sale of the non-current
asset is recognised at the date of derecognition.

Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortised while they
are classified as held for sale.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are presented
separately from the other assets in the statement of financial
position.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R AR T EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTIIR)

2.9

Investments in debt and equity securities
The Board's policies for investments in debt and equity securities
are set out below.

Investments in debt and equity securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Board commits to purchase/sell
the investment. The investments are initially stated at fair value
plus directly attributable transaction costs, except for those
investments measured at FVPL for which transaction costs are
recognised directly in profit or loss. For an explanation of how
the Board determines fair value of financial instruments, see
note 3.3. These investments are subsequently accounted for as
follows, depending on their classification.

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
Investments other than equity investments
Non-equity investments held by the Board are classified
into one of the following measurement categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment is held for the
collection of contractual cash flows which represent
solely payments of principal and interest. Interest
income from the investment is calculated using the
effective interest method (see note 2.19(b)).

- FVOCI - recycling, if the contractual cash flows of
the investment comprise solely payments of principal
and interest and the investment is held within a
business model whose objective is achieved by
both the collection of contractual cash flows and
sale. Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the recognition
in comprehensive income of expected credit losses,
interest income (calculated using the effective
interest method) and foreign exchange gains and
losses. When the investment is derecognised, the
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRR T aE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTIIR)

(B)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of the investment
the Board makes an irrevocable election to designate
the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such that
subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Such elections are made on an
instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be made
if the investment meets the definition of equity from the
issuer’s perspective. Where such an election is made, the
amount accumulated in other comprehensive income
remains in the investment reserve (non-recycling) until
the investment is disposed of. At the time of disposal,
the amount accumulated in the investment reserve (non-
recycling) is transferred to accumulated fund. It is not
recycled through comprehensive income. Dividends
from an investment in equity securities, irrespective of
whether classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised in
comprehensive income as other income in accordance
with the policy set out in note 2.19(c).

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018

Investments in securities held for trading were classified
as financial assets measured at FVPL. Any attributable
transaction costs were recognised in comprehensive
income as incurred. At the end of each reporting period
the fair value was remeasured, with any resultant gain or
loss being recognised in comprehensive income.

Dated debt securities that the Board had the positive
ability and intention to hold to maturity were classified
as held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-maturity securities
were stated at amortised cost (for impairment see note
2.11 = policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018).

Investments which did not fall into any of the above
categories were classified as available-for-sale financial
assets. At the end of each reporting period the fair
value was remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss
being recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in funds and reserves in the
investment reserve (recycling). Dividend income from equity
investments and interest income from debt securities
calculated using the effective interest method were
recognised in comprehensive income in accordance with the
policies set out in notes 2.19(c) and 2.19(b), respectively.
When the investments were derecognised or impaired (see
note 2.11 — policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018), the
cumulative gain or loss recognised in funds and reserves
was reclassified to comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR R R RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LAVETTHIR)

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the statement of financial position when the Board
currently has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. The
Board has also entered into arrangements that do not meet the
criteria for offsetting but still allow for the related amounts to
be offset in certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the
termination of a contract.

2.11 Credit losses from financial instruments

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
The Board recognises a loss allowance for ECLs on
financial assets measured at amortised cost (including
cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, interest
receivables, deposits and prepayments, advance payment
for compensation, fixed deposits with original maturity
over three months and held-to-collect debt securities at
amortised cost).

Financial assets measured at fair value, including units in
bond funds, equity securities measured at FVPL and equity
securities designated at FVOCI (non-recycling), are not
subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the present value of all
expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between
the cash flows due to the Board in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Board expects to
receive).

The expected cash shortfalls for fixed-rate financial assets,
accounts receivable and other receivables are discounted
using the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition or an approximation thereof where the effect
of discounting is material.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is
the maximum contractual period over which the Board is
exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Board takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR T aE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTIIR)

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from all possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which the ECL model
applies.

Loss allowances for accounts receivable are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on
these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Board's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors and
an assessment of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Board recognises a
loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there has
been a significant increase in credit risk of the financial
instrument since initial recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Board compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at the
reporting date with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment, the Board
considers that a default event occurs when (i) the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Board in full, without recourse by the Board to actions
such as realising security (if any is held); or (ii) the financial
asset is 90 days past due. The Board considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or interest on
their contractually due dates;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R AR T EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTIIR)

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
a financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Board.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is recognised
as an impairment gain or loss in comprehensive income.
The Board recognises an impairment gain or loss for all
financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note
2.19(b) is calculated based on the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-
impaired, in which case interest income is calculated based
on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less
loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Board assesses whether
a financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
the following observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR T aE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTIIR)

(B)

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
into bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; or

—  the disappearance of an active market for a security
because of financial difficulties of the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written
off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is
no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case
when the Board determines that the debtor does not have
assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient
cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
comprehensive income in the period in which the recovery
occurs.

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018

Prior to 1 January 2018, an “incurred loss” model was
used to measure impairment losses on financial assets
not classified as at FVPL (e.g. accounts receivable, other
receivables, available-for-sale investments and held-to-
maturity debt securities). Under the “incurred loss” model,
an impairment loss was recognised only when there was
objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment included:

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
an investment in an equity instrument below its cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R AR T EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTIIR)

If any such evidence existed, an impairment loss was WMIFFEERIBBFERE - AR T3Pt
determined and recognised as follows: ET IR EEE

For accounts receivables, other receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost, impairment
loss was measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate,
where the effect of discounting was material. This
assessment was made collectively where these
financial assets shared similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and had not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which were assessed for
impairment collectively were based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreased and the decrease could
be linked objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment
loss was reversed through comprehensive income. A
reversal of an impairment loss was only recognised
to the extent that it did not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

When the recovery of a debtor or other financial
assets carried at amortised cost was considered
doubtful but not remote, associated impairment
losses were recorded using an allowance account.
When the Board was satisfied that recovery was
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable was
written off against the gross carrying amount of
those assets directly. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the allowance
account were reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly were recognised in
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRR T aE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTIIR)

2.12

2.13

- For available-for-sale investments, the cumulative
loss that had been recognised in the investment
reserve (recycling) was reclassified to comprehensive
income. The amount of the cumulative loss that
was recognised in comprehensive income was the
difference between the acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayment and amortisation) and current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that asset
previously recognised in comprehensive income.

Impairment losses recognised in comprehensive
income in respect of available-for-sale equity
securities were not reversed through comprehensive
income. Any subsequent increase in the fair value of
such assets was recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Impairment losses recognised in comprehensive
income in respect of available-for-sale debt securities
were reversed if the subsequent increase in fair value
could be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised. Reversals
of impairment losses in such circumstances were
recognised in comprehensive income.

Receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Board has an unconditional
right to receive consideration. A right to receive consideration
is unconditional if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses (see note 2.11).

If collection of receivables is expected in one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-
current assets.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for ECL in accordance with the policy set out in note
2.11.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R SRR T EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTIIR)

2.14 B R f#E

2.14 Funds and reserves

The income and expenses relating to funds and reserves,
other than investment reserve, are directly dealt with in
comprehensive income. Any net surpluses or deficits relating to
these funds and reserves are transferred between the statement
of comprehensive income and the respective funds and reserves.

2.15 Payables

Payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due
within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the

2.15
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liabilities. BfE-
2.16 Provisions 2.16 }%ﬂ%

Provisions are recognised when the Board has a present legal
or constructive obligation where, as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

2.17 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Board. It can also
be a present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of economic
resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements, if any. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it
will then be recognised as a provision.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR T aE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTIIR)

(a)

(b)

2.18 Employee benefits

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity or
paternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Board operates a defined contribution retirement
scheme under the Occupational Retirement Scheme
Ordinance (“ORSO Scheme”) and a mandatory provident
fund scheme (“MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong. The assets
of the schemes are held in separate trustee-administered
funds. The Board has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expense when they are
due and, for ORSO Scheme, are reduced by contributions
forfeited by those employees who leave the ORSO
Scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that
a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is
available.

2.19 Revenue and other income

(a)

(b)

(c)

Levy income, penalty on late payments of levies and
ex-gratia fund administration charge

Levy income, penalty on late payments of levies and ex-
gratia fund administration charge are recognised when
the Board becomes entitled to them and it is probable that
they will be received.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues under the
effective interest method using the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired,
the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For credit-impaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised cost
(i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset (see note 2.11).

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS $R AR T EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTIIR)

(d) Rental income (d) HEUA
Rental income receivable under operating leases is FREREEE TREZASKRAR
recognised in comprehensive income on a straight-line YA NEGE IR MR TER -

basis over the term of the lease.

(e) Sundry income (e) FEHWA
Sundry income is recognised on an accruals basis. TR AR R AT R ERER -
2.20 Compensation 2.20 FHE
Compensation expense is accounted for on an accruals basis. HESHIRET EEALR -
2.21 Operating leases 2,21 KEHE
(a) Aslessee (a) 1EBFEAA
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and NEERBREZ BRIBM0HRER KEHK
rewards of ownership is not transferred to the Board as WEEETESZEGER/RBEAZ
lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made HE O HRKEHE - KEHE
under operating leases (net of any incentives received from Z & (k8 A ARERZ 7]
the lessor) are charged to comprehensive income on a ER)EREEFHIEREFTAS
straight-line basis over the period of the lease. HE -
(b) As lessor (b) 1EBHHEA
When assets are leased out under an operating lease, the WEERBLEHRELH  EEQK
asset is included in the statement of financial position REEZHEFAFBARAERA o

based on the nature of the asset.

3 Financial risk and fund risk management 3 BXEREESEERER

3.1 Financial risk factors 3.1 BiEBEER

The Board's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, EeZEEMPREDTHAHTRANG

including credit risk, liquidity risk, price risk and cash flow Bk EFeEEERR - RHESEA

interest rate risk. The Board's overall risk management program B BERR &iﬁiméﬂﬁﬂl‘» &

focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks ;;@%E“@ﬁﬁ%@ﬂ%ﬂ%iﬁ@@%ﬂﬁ%

to minimise potential adverse effects on the Board’s financial ZARAIERAE j’[ﬁ%;ﬁﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%%%

performance. SUBEE D BETFFE

(a) Credit risk (a) EERERE
Credit risk of the Board is primarily attributable to EeZEgMEH 2 EERBEEH
accounts receivable, held-to-collect debt securities at JEUBRR ~ 1R B SHR AN 5T B W HF E U
amortised cost, fixed deposits with original maturity over B2 EBES  REBB=EA%E
three months and cash at banks. Bz EMERRBRITERES °
The Board has policies in place for the control and EeZEgRERERFREREE
monitoring of its credit risk arising from uncollected levy I?E ER BB mAmE 2 EER
income. The credit risk on held-to-collect debt securities at Bz o 2 RNIRHEE BE A AR ET 8 N FREUCER
amortised cost, fixed deposits with original maturity over ZEBES  REBB=EA%DH
three months and cash at banks is limited because the ZEBRERARBITFER - ARR S
counterparties are corporations and banks with high credit HE AEBEBRIREEL TREEF
rating assigned by international credit-rating agencies. B IR IRTT - HIEER, Aﬁﬁﬁ o
Accordingly, the Board members are of the opinion that -JH: HE4LEE€LZERE E&F
the Board’s activities are not exposed to significant credit BeEPEH L EERR I[Tiji
risk.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRR T aE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTIIR)

Accounts receivable

The Board's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each contractor rather than
the industry or country in which the contractors operate.
There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within
the Board, as where there is credit exposure to the Board,
it is spread over a diversified portfolio of contractors.

Evaluation of recoverability focuses on the contractor’s
past history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information specific
to the contractor as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the contractor operates. Accounts
receivable are due within 30 days from the date of billing.

The Board measures loss allowances for accounts
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is
calculated using a provision matrix. The Board measures
loss allowance on financial assets based on the past loss
experience, existing market conditions as well as forward
looking information at the end of each reporting period.
The Board has substantially provided for uncollected levy
due from contractors in financial difficulties as mentioned
in note 10. For other uncollected levy income, the Board
considered that there is no significant loss allowance
recognised in accordance with HKFRS 9 as at 31 December
2018, and no expected credit loss rate has therefore been
disclosed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS HR AR T EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LAVETTHIR)

(b)

Comparative information under HKAS 39

Prior to 1 January 2018, an impairment loss was
recognised only when there was objective evidence
of impairment (see note 2.11 — policy applicable prior
to 1 January 2018). At 31 December 2017, accounts
receivables of HK$33,194 were determined to be
impaired. The aging analysis of accounts receivable that
were not considered to be impaired was as follows:

RIF( BB SEEADEI9HIFRZ H
M2018F 1 A1 HAT - MEBEERE
AREEORERBR(2ENMT
2.11—A2018%F 1 A1 HANEA 21K
) o 20174128318 » FEIRERFK
FEHE33,194 T ETE AMME © TR
B AR EWER R Z R AT T

Neither past due nor impaired BEAR 8 B IR (E 12,466,537

Past due by: 2 8BRS

Up to 3 months =ERAA 262,692

4 to 12 months NE+—{EA8 11,679
274,371

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a wide range of contractors for whom there was
no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related
to a number of independent contractors that had a good
track record with the Board. Based on past experience, the
Board members believed that no impairment allowance
was necessary in respect of these balances as there had
been no significant change in credit quality and the
balances were still considered fully recoverable.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and bank balances. The Board, through its
Committee on Finance and Administration, has adopted
a prudent investment and treasury strategy so as to
ensure that it maintains sufficient cash to meet its liquidity
requirements.

(b)

RN ERMEESZES

12,740,908

B AR 180 B R R (2 JE I AR OB B 5 4R
EBEAR  MzSAEHIHTE
R -

EEMEEREZ BN FURE S R
HE2RE A RFEBCER 2B
BEEEH - REBERR  E2ZX8
SZERERARZSERERRE
B AREEEZRUESAZL
I MR- CE

REBELEE
EEZRPECARERBERFER
HWESRRITHESR - HESZERER
HET BB RTHRZE @ CHRMIE
EZREREBERRE - LRREEH
REeRNERBESHFR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRR T aE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LAVETTHIR)

The table below analyses the Board’s financial liabilities
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the end of the reporting period to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the
table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Within 1 year or on demand
Accruals and other payables (note 15)

(Pf3E15)

(c)  Price risk
The Board is exposed to equity price risk because of
the listed investments held. The investment portfolio
is managed by the Committee on Finance and
Administration of the Board and in accordance with the
Board’s investment guidelines.

The Board’s listed investments are listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong.

At 31 December 2018, if the equity price had increased/
decreased by 5% (2017: 5%) with all other variables held
constant, financial assets at FVOCI, financial assets at
FVPL, investment reserve, accumulated fund and available-
for-sale financial assets would have increased/decreased
by approximately HK$10,018,000 (2017: HKS$NiIl),
HK$6,358,000 (2017: HKS$Nil), HK$10,018,000 (2017:
HK$18,632,000), HK$6,358,000 (2017: HKS$Nil) and
HK$Nil (2017: HK$18,632,000) respectively, as a result of
changes in fair value of the listed investments.

(d) Cash flow interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Board's interest rate
risk mainly arises from the bank balances and is managed
by the Committee on Finance and Administration of the
Board.
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6,358,000 (20174 : BT ) »
75 #510,018,000 7T (2017 F : B #&
18,632,000t ) + 7 ¥#6,358,0007C
(2017F - BEZT L) RBEBZ T
(2017 4 : #%18,632,0007T) * Ui
TR EMBEZ AR BEZSA
g( °

B2 A E R
MEERATSMNEEH TR T
BZRRBEIKARRAESRERDZ
R B2 ZEGZRITHEBTHA
EHMERER  BREARAESEZE
EBTZHBRITHEZEEER -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS HR AR T EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTIIR)

3.3

At 31 December 2018, if interest rates on bank deposits
had been 100 (2017: 100) basis points higher/lower with
all other variables held constant, surplus for the year
would have been HK$15,519,000 (2017: HK$12,794,000)
higher/lower as a result of higher/lower interest income.

R 2018412 A 31 H » HRITHFEZRF
= I TR 100 A2 (2017 4F ¢
100 1B E25) « M ATA H b8 8+
T AIFRBBRGSEN, BN
78 115,519,000 (2017 4F © B &
12,794,0007T) * kT3 EHARF B YA
0, A BT o

3.2 Fund risk management 3.2 ESREBER
The Board's objective when managing funds is to safeguard ESZEENEHESREEREERS
the Board’s ability to continue as a going concern and to have BERENFELE  WHAHRREE
sufficient funding for future operations. The Board's overall FAzARES ES2ZESHBRK
strategy remains unchanged from prior year. BEFHER -
The funds of the Board comprise its funds and reserves. EeZEBEevEeEEES RFHE -
Fair value measurement 3.3 AREENHE
The table below analyses the Board's financial instruments TRAMESZEGEBEEZEIRAAE
carried at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels BifEvemMI A -TRAEHKZATEN
have been defined as follows: ™
Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical o AREENKEENERME L2 RE
assets or liabilities (level 1). (CRESFHE)(E—BR) -
Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 e KEBEEMREBIZEEXEBEN
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly AERE AR (TREE (AER)
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) S (BREER)) (B_ER) -
(level 2).
Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on o WIBIEFIE R TG EIE (BRI 8
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level RYB)ZEESBENRARE (F
3). ZE&R) -
The following table presents the Board's assets that are TRERESZEEMN2018F 12 A31H
measured at fair value at 31 December 2018. BARBEFEZEE -
2018 2017
$ $
Level 1 F—ER
Financial assets at FVOCI BRAREBEFAHMEE
Wesz R A E 200,357,947 =
Financial assets at FVPL BRAREBEFAERZ
SRMEE 127,163,075 =
Available-for-sale financial assets AIEEESmEE - 372,638,430
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B SRR T aE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LAVETTHIR)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
is based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting
period. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are
readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and
those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted market price
used for financial assets held by the Board is the current bid
price. These instruments are included in level 1.

4 Critical accounting estimates and

judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Board makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

(a) Held-to-collect debt securities at amortised cost

The Board follows the guidance of HKFRS 9 on classifying non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity at amortised cost. This classification requires
significant judgement. In making this judgement, the Board
determines the appropriate business models and assesses the
“solely payments of principal and interest” requirements for
financial assets. The certificates of deposits were classified as
held-to-collect debt securities at amortised cost as the Board has
determined that the objective of holding the investments is to
collect contractual cash flows of principal and interest.

(b) Impairment of accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are reviewed periodically to assess for
impairment. The Board estimates loss allowances for expected
credit losses based on historical credit loss experience and
the current and forecast general economic conditions. If the
financial conditions of contractors were to deteriorate, actual
write off would be higher than expected. The methodology
and assumptions used are reviewed regularly to reduce any
difference between the loss estimates and actual amounts.

(c) Provisions
Judgement is involved in determining whether a present
obligation exists and in estimating the probability, timing and
amount of any outflows.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS HR AR T EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LAVETTHIR)

Provisions for legal proceedings typically require a higher degree
of judgement than other types of provisions. When matters
are at an early stage, accounting judgements can be difficult
because of the high degree of uncertainty associated with
determining whether a present obligation exists, and estimating
the probability and amount of any outflows that may arise.
As matters progress, the Board members and legal advisers
evaluate on an ongoing basis whether provisions should be
recognised, revising previous judgements and estimates as
appropriate. At more advanced stages, it is typically easier to
make judgements and estimates around a better defined set
of possible outcomes. However, the amount provisioned can
remain very sensitive to the assumptions used. There could
be a wide range of possible outcomes for any pending legal
proceedings. As a result, it is often not practicable to quantify
a range of possible outcomes for individual matters. It is also
not practicable to meaningfully quantify ranges of potential
outcomes in aggregate for these types of provisions because of
the diverse nature and circumstances of such matters and the
wide range of uncertainties involved.

FERFMZBEBERAMBRZBES
ERABEHE - EZEFERNYE
BB SRAFBEUIEH G HE AR
BHETEANRGFERME  URMETT8E
H i E A E B @Rz ARt RS
B P RBEANTHBARER - BEEEME
R E2ZBEZBREARBRSRHEN
HESHERERE LTEEZREELHAN
HIEf RS o REREER - BEAIURE
ZRERMAELBAIRELZ — RIS
RIEHHE R EE - AT - BEEATEEE
HEMARKRTE - ERAFRERFRY
BEEAEER - Bt B@REMHH
BRELAZZETAGRBEL AT R
IR EE ER A S EEEERMY
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=
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTIIR)

5 Property, plant and equipment 5 ¥I% > HBEREE

Leasehold Property for Computer
Properties  Leasehold land  improvements  rental (note) equipment
il H it LS
AELH HRIE (Rat) LB
) $ ) )
Year ended 31 December 2017 BZ2017E 1283 ALERE
Opening net book amount EREHE 14,835,839 6,803,520 2,043,764 6,761,225 - 30,444,343
Classified as held for sale (note 13) AR S (M 13) - - - (6607,674) - (6607,674)
- Cost —BA = = - (10,600,000) - (10,600,000
- Accumulated depreciation —Z2:rE = - - 3,992,326 - 3,992,326
Depreciation (note 14) & (M 14) (341,054) (7.971) (510,941) (153,551) - (1,013517)
Closing net book amount EREHFE 14,494,785 6,795,549 1,532,823 - - 2823157
At 31 December 2017 R2017512 5318
Cost AR 17,052,690 6,855,332 5,109,410 - - 29,017,432
Accumulated depreciation ZEITE (2,557,905) (59,783)  (3,576,587) - - (6,194,275
Net book amount FEFE 14,494,785 6,795,549 1,532,823 - - 22,823,157
Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ218F 12831 ALLEE
Opening net book amount FREFE 14,494,785 6,795,549 1,532,823 = - 22823157
Additions E = - - - 463,580 463,580
Depreciation (note 14) FE (HizE14) (341,054) (7971)  (510,941) = (62.644)  (922,610)
Closing net book amount EXRREFHE 14,153,731 6,787,578 1,021,882 - 400936 22,364,127
At 31 December 2018 R2018%12A31H
Cost AR 17,052,690 6,855,332 5,109,410 - 463,580 29,481,012
Accumulated depreciation itE (2,898,959) (67,754)  (4,087,528) - (62,644)  (7,116,885)
Net book amount REFE 14,153,731 6,787,578 1,021,882 - 400,936 22,364,127
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B RS HR AR T EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LAVETTHIR)

M : REZE2017F12A831ALEE E2£ES
EREENEBREDEARBELEZEE -

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board transferred the
property for rental to assets classified as held for sale.

REEWREPERZMESFNT

Amounts recognised in comprehensive income for the property are as

follows:
2018 2017
$ $
Rental income R ON 106,725 1,024,560
Direct operating expenses from property REEEMSWAZYEZ
that generated rental income HERELERX (22,308) (205,220)
84,417 819,340

HAMEDN 20182 AHE  Z2Z8eR
201848 12 A 31 B I 4 (o] 14 R B 2 R 2R M
ERREZHTEEME(2017F ) -

As the property was sold in February 2018, the Board did not have any
unprovided contractual obligations for future repairs and maintenance as
at 31 December 2018 (2017: HK$Nil).

6 Intangible assets 6 EFE&EE
Computer
software
- EG
$
Cost: AR :
At 1 January 2017 R2017F 1818 -
Additions INE -

At 31 December 2017

At 1 January 2018

M2017512 A31H

MR20184181H

757,577

Additions INE

At 31 December 2018 20184128318 757,577
Accumulated amortisation: E-4ig:

At 1 January 2017 M2017F1H1H =
Charge for the year FAZH -
At 31 December 2017 M20174F12A31H -
At 1 January 2018 20181 H1H =
Charge for the year (note 14) FRZE (5 14) 50,505
At 31 December 2018 7®20184F 12 A31H 50,505
Net book value: BREFE :

At 31 December 2018 R2018%F 12 A31H 707,072
At 31 December 2017 M2017912A31H -

FERTERMERESEZEE 2018FFH 61



BIGIEYEIST - - - 0Er'8E9'TLE LTTEP6'788 198'606'50€ | {5 241

8E7'SE0'7L = = = = = 8E7'SE0'7L U GE=TEITE SJUalennba ysed pue yse)
BoETITSOTL - = = = = 66671597’ Il WS HE SRR SyUow 331} Jaho Aunyew [euibuo yum sysodap paxiy
£l6'LL = = = = = £6'LL HLNEEY sjuauufedaud pue sysodag
071196l = = = = = €07 119'el EEAE $9[(eAIRDA! 1SRN
8060L7L = = = = = 80607L'C) o e 30N SN0y
0er'sE9'zLE - = = 0ey'8e97LE - = 6 FERTEM SJasSe [eUeU dfes-1of-3jgeleny
[TEh6188 - - = = [Ts6r88 - 8 FEET S eH S]asse [epueul) fLniew-o1piH
HIEH T HLI0TY £107 J3QURd3( 1€ W
BIEYSY'EOST  SL0'6BYPL  SSEBMESTC  LTTEv6Yss - = 199'706'0€ | P10}

|
i 8EY'SE0'pL = = = = = 8Ey'SE0'pL GE=T6iTE SJUB[eAINba Ysed pue yse)
| BeETIYS9TL - - - - - 6667115971 LHRAZHEIHR=RRAY  syuow 31y} Jano Auniew UG Yy sisodp paKig
i €119 - - - - - €119 LN T Sjuaw/edaid pue sysodag
_ £07'199's) = - = = = £07'99'€) EEAES S3[qeNER! 13133
_ 806/07L'7 = = = = = 806077 s a0e] 3[(eARa SUNody
_ S99 S06R99r - - - - - (W0EH) ZHRT 2 2H Y EBEVUY 1) 310u) g4 e iase fepueu
_ SSEBPESIT - SSEBEST - - - - (VBN ZHRT 2NES RV I ITH 310U) [JOA4 18 S1a85e [eDUeUlY
_ LTere8s - - LTEvb188 - - - ()F20) 49 2 )4 2y () 2lou) 150D pasioue Je sanunds 1G3p 13j0-0k-pRH

3 BNue,

_ HIH 158000 8107 Kenter | 1y
" 8EV'IE6T0LT  SLO'EN'LT [76'(SE000  8E6096 8L - = 8L1'SS7'065'L 2]}
_ ey = = = = = Sy U GEETH Ty SIUJeAND? Use pue yse)
| [STHTLESL - = = = = [STHTLES'| I EHATHE YE=RRLY SUpuoLI 331} Jano Anieu jeuiblio Lim sysodap paxig
| £61'28 - - - - - £61'78 EENE( T Suawiedaud pue sysodaq
I 71€'85€81 = = = = = 71€'85€81 EiEAE S9[(eNIRD! 1SN
I £09'950'07 = = = = = £09'950'07 0l e 3{deARDR SN0y
I sl ol - - = = 6 FERTTE VBV Td1d 10 S1asse [enueuly
| e'ser - ese0r - = - - 6 FERT OB EBE YT DO/ 18 S1355e [eDueuly
| 86096 8L - = 8E60%8L - = = 8 LEUE e AT E S e 150 PRSIHOWE 18 S31N08s 198D 13)02-01-PRH
| HIEH 1L 800 8107 J3qwa03q |€
mwmw S)asse [epueuly

_ $ $ § § § §

_ FEWSZ  FEEST  ¢BWET HRS FERIZ  HEN
_ mmé BRETHE  WRYHE  SW¥Dk BEZey  WeE

| PEYVE  YEDEVUE  FEyMEEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

v
©
Ie)
©
[@)]
ﬁm_ m | TdN ke 1D0Nd 1€ 1500 Sjosse S)asse [elueul S9|qeAIRd3)
w vnkv | SJOSSE [eueul{  sjasse [epueul  pasijioweje |enueut} ajes 5_‘_3.2_._ pue sueo]
S | SOIUNIAS IGBP -0} -0)-pleH
._._.ﬂ T ,\v i 19][02-0)-pJ3H
C N
sk
o e CHEI MR TREZEHEEES Y :6uIMO]|04 BY) SPNPU SYUBWINIISUL [ePURU S, pJeOg BYL
(%2}
m m% _ WOETRE [ fiobayed Ag syuswnuisul [epueuly £
mg &

i R

62 Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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BA SRR T EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LAETTHIR)

Financial liabilities LREHE
Other financial liabilities at amortised cost REERAGEZHEMEREE
Accruals and other payables (note 15) fERTRIE M H Ab S F0E
(BMtEE15) 5,229,954 2,674,319

Notes: B EE -

(i) Held-to-maturity financial assets were reclassified to held-to-collect debt () 20184 1 A1 BERERCEBIHEREEL)
securities at amortised cost upon the initial application of HKFRS 9 at 1 FORE FARIHZERMEEENHEER
January 2018 (see note 2.2(a)(i). B A BT HERER BB ES (2FM =T

2.2(a)(i)) °

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets were reclassified to financial assets (i)  M20184F1 A1 BEXERCEBHERSEL)D
measured at FVPL and equity securities designated at FVOCI (non- FOWK  JHEESREEETHIERRAR
recycling) upon the initial application of HKFRS 9 at 1 January 2018 (see BEAEBRITEZSREEREEREAAE
note 2.2(a)(i)). Bt AEMEmE Sz BAES (2EM7F2.2(a)

(i) -

8 Held-to-collect debt securities at amortised 8 REIHEKAFTELFFEWEIZE

. . . gk e + 4= 7= S = ss
cost/held-to-maturity financial assets BES FERIHCERNERE

2018 2017

$ $

Certificates of deposits, at nominal value FRHEZEE 785,000,000 885,000,000

Unamortised discounts RS 2 T (39,062) (56,773)

At amortised cost bize 3D %N 784,960,938 884,943,227
Less: Certificates of deposits to be A R 12 8 A A EER

matured within 12 months ZFEE = (100,000,000)

Certificates of deposits to be matured 1P 12 B A& 588
after 12 months ZIFREE 784,960,938 784,943,227
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PR AR BT RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTTHIR)

Movements in certificates of deposits are summarised as follows:

At 1 January 2017
Additions

Redemption
Amortisation of discounts

At 31 December 2017

Impact on initial application of HKFRS 9
(note 2.2(a)(i))

At 1 January 2018

Redemption
Amortisation of discounts

At 31 December 2018

R201751 /1R
NE

B

P

M2017512 A31H

BRERCE SIS IREER]D
% 957 2 R (MI5E2.2(a)0)

20181 H1H

fBm
P sH

MR2018412A831H

Certificates of deposits are with fixed interest rates ranging from

1.78% to 4.85% (2017:

1.78% to 4.85%) and maturity dates

between March 2020 to March 2021 (2017: October 2018 to March

2021).

The Board did not reclassify any financial assets measured at
amortised cost to fair value during the years ended 31 December

2018 and 2017.

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the balance did not contain

impaired assets.

Certificates of deposits with nominal value of HK$100,000,000 (2017:
HKS$Nil) were matured during the year ended 31 December 2018.
There were no disposals during the years ended 31 December 2018

and 2017.

The fair value of certificates of deposits based on quoted market bid
prices is HK$775,438,780 (2017: HK$879,672,130).

All certificates of deposits are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
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GREEHBMAT
Held-to-collect

debt securities at
amortised cost

Held-to-maturity
financial assets

RBHRATTE
I FFAEUER BEZEH
ZEBES ZEMEE
$
= 349,919,024
= 770,000,000
= (235,000,000)
- 24,203
= 884,943,227

884,943,227 (884,943,227)

884,943,227 =

(100,000,000) =
17,711 =

784,960,938 =

FREEEFFENT1.78% £4.85% (2017
F:1.78% £4.85%) © BIHIE N T 202043 A
20213 A(20174F : 20184F 10 HE 20214
3A)-°

REZ2018F K2017F 12 A31HIEFE &
SLESVEBTWREENATEZSEE
SN BRZRANBEFECSRIEE -
R2018FE 2017612 A31H » £ EBIE
EREEE °
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FREREZE2018F12 A31 HILFERH - &
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA SRR T EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LAETTFIR)

9 Other non-current financial assets 9 HERBEeMmEE

Securities listed in Hong Kong,
at market value:

At 1 January 2017

Additions

Fair value gain transferred to investment
reserve (recycling) (note 14)

At 31 December 2017

Impact on initial application of HKFRS 9
(note 2.2(a)(i)

At 1 January 2018

Additions

Fair value loss transferred to investment
reserve (non-recycling) (note 14)

Fair value loss recognised in
comprehensive income

At 31 December 2018

EEBLTZES
WA :

R2017F181H

NE

ARHBERSEREZRE
e (A EEE ) (i 14)

20176124318

EYNE e
RRINVE 9w &
(PF3E2.2(a)))

720181 A1H
NE
AR BEGEESRERE

(N Em) (FFE14)

ReEREERZ DAE
BEHE

201812 A31H

Financial assets
at FVOCI (note)
BAREERA

Hitt2E sz
TREE (=)
$

Financial assets
at FVPL

BRAABERA
BEZEMEE
$

Available-for-sale
financial assets

AfLESHEE
$

= = 293,441,125

= = 1,035,267

= = 78,162,038

= = 372,638,430
225,949,355 146,689,075 (372,638,430)
225,949,355 146,689,075 =
1,144,926 = =
(26,736,334) = =
= (19,526,000) =
200,357,947 127,163,075 =

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the balances did not contain
impaired assets.

All listed securities are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

Note: Details of the Board's investments in listed equity securities, which are
designated at FVOCI, are as follows:

Name of company

DRERB

CK Hutchison Holdings Ltd. RIMEZEXEBR AR
CLP Holdings Ltd. BERARAR
Hong Kong and China Gas Co. Ltd. BRREEFERAT
HSBC Holdings plc SELIZERAR AT
Power Assets Holdings Ltd. BREEXEGRARA

Hang Seng Bank Ltd. BARITER AT

Sun Hung Kai Properties Ltd. REMERRAR AR
Swire Pacific Ltd. AEEBERAT]

CK Asset Holdings Ltd. RIBXEERRAR

R2018FE N 2017F 12 A318  EH T EBIE
BREEE -

PRE LS EESABETE -

M : EeZEBeHEEARAABEFARLLEZE

Wiz EMBRARESZKAFHBNOT ¢

Dividend income

Fair value as at  for the year ended

Stock code 31 December 2018 31 December 2018
R 20185 HZE20185
12A31H 12A318LFE

BRACER ZRAREE ZBREWA

$ $
1 31,883,898 1,246,525
2 22,018,800 738,936
3 13,656,357 1,422,346
5 35,691,840 2,203,014
6 9,837,250 1,588,400
11 23,434,140 933,100
16 25,110,000 1,046,250
19 14,431,150 401,350
1113 24,294,512 741,979
200,357,947 10,321,900
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR T EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTTHIR)

10 Accounts receivable 10 FEURBRRX

Levy income receivable FEMERFRUA
Less: Loss allowance B RS
Levy income receivable, net FEME R A SRR

At 31 December 2018, accounts receivable of HK$131,708 (2017:
HK$274,371) were past due but not impaired. These related to a
number of independent contractors for whom there is no recent history
of default. The ageing analysis of these accounts receivable is as follows:

21,655,485 12,774,102
(1,598,882) (33,194)
20,056,603 12,740,908

MR2018%F 12 A31H @ EWIEFER 131,708 7T
(20174 : B¥274,3710) BBEERREIE - Z
LRI EE T BT MR AR 8k 2 B A
BAERE - ZERWERRZEREDITAOT ¢

2018

$

Past due by: B8 Bl
Up to 3 months =EALAA
4 to 12 months ME+={EA

At 31 December 2018, accounts receivable of HK$1,598,882 (2017:
HK$33,194) were impaired and substantially provided for. The
individually impaired receivables mainly related to contractors that
were in financial difficulties and management assessed that only a
portion of receivables is expected to be recovered. The ageing analysis
of these accounts receivable is as follows:

Past due by: 2 B
Up to 3 months =EALAA
4 10 12 months ME+=EA

Movement in the loss allowance account of accounts receivable is as
follows:

At 1 January ®1A1H
Impairment loss of accounts receivable
(note 18)

At 31 December ®12A31H
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FEW AR TOR B 1E (FiIFE18)

70,384 262,692
61,324 11,679
131,708 274,371

720184 12 A31H @ EUWER B 1,598,882
TT(2017 4 : B133,1947T) EMERE KRB
PEH S - BRI B R ERKRFEE ZHmE %
Nz A&BEAR  MEREETG%  BHE
AU Bl BP0 FEUR RIS RS RURFZ BRER DT
R

2018 2017

$ $

433,732 33,194
1,165,150 =
1,598,882 33,194

FEWERT 2 IR ER B 28T ¢

2018 2017

$ $

33,194 10,379
1,565,688 22,815
1,598,882 33,194




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRR T EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LAETTIITR)
The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables have been W RERERERBGRIERED A ZE S
included in administrative expenses in comprehensive income. Amounts BETTHAX - BEHEEKREREIINRSR - 5T
charged to the allowance account are generally written off when there ABERE 22— M TUME - KR ELEE
is no expectation of recovering additional cash. The origination of new RIABPTES 2 EWER T - BHEIZ 20184
accounts receivable net of those settled contributed to the increase in 12 A31 BIEFE 2 BEEELN -
the loss allowance during the year ended 31 December 2018.
No bad debts were written off directly in administration expenses in REE2018F &2017F 12 A31HILLFE - #
comprehensive income during the years ended 31 December 2018 EEREEN2EREE N 2T -
and 2017.
The Board does not hold any collateral as security. E¢Z B WESEETMERYIERER -
The carrying amounts of accounts receivable approximate their fair R2018F & 2017F 12 A31H » BUERZEK
values as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 and are denominated in HeBEEARBEES - BHUNEBEE -
Hong Kong dollars.
Further details on the Board's credit policy and credit risk arising from FHRESZESNEREERMEB RUERWNE
accounts receivable are set out in note 3.1(a). BER 2 #E— S BEEHRME3. 1) ©
11 Fixed deposits with original maturity over 1M REBB=EARZP2EH?T
three months ™
As at 31 December 2018, the effective interest rate on fixed deposits MR2018F12A31H REBB=AZBIEA
with original maturity over three months is 2.49% (2017: 1.55%) per CEHRTERZERFENEF2.49% (2017 F -
annum; these deposits have an average maturity of 212 days (2017: 1.55%) : ZEGFHFERR212 H(20174F -
236 days). 236 H)
The carrying amounts of fixed deposits are denominated in Hong EHFFNETSBEIIABEETE -
Kong dollars.
12 Cash and cash equivalents 12 RERREEEY
2018 2017
$ $
Cash at banks and on hand RITERNFEES 14,712,113 14,035,438
Maximum exposure to credit risk B ZzHaEERK 14,695,608 14,023,812
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are denominated RekReEEM 2 EEREIIABBETE -
in Hong Kong dollars.
13 Assets classified as held for sale 13 DEABFELHEZEE
2018 2017
$ $
At 1 January ®1A1H 6,607,674 -
Transfer from property for rental (note 5) e M (EES) - 6,607,674
Disposal HE (6,607,674) -
At 31 December R12H31H — 6,607,674
In September 2017, the Board decided to sell the property which R201759A° - A ZE AT HEREBAE
was originally acquired for the office use. The sale of the property MAERMEZYE - ZWMRCR 2018462 ARt
was completed in February 2018 with the sales consideration of B % 43,280,000 T I E - RELE 2018 4F
HK$43,280,000. Gain on disposal of assets classified as held for sale 12ANABIEFE ERzENEFERLES
amounting to HK$36,672,326 was recognised in comprehensive BABELHEZEEMS KB 36,672,326
income during the year ended 31 December 2018. JC °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR R BT EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LAETTFIR)

(a)

(b)

(9]

(d)

(e)

U]

(9)

Research fund
A research fund has been set aside to finance ongoing research
projects.

Prevention fund

A prevention fund has been set aside to finance education
and publicity programs aiming at reminding workers and
their families on the occupational hazard, and to stress the
importance of prevention.

Rehabilitation fund

A rehabilitation fund has been set aside to finance rehabilitation
programs which provide holistic rehabilitation care to the
patients.

Computer systems fund

A computer systems fund has been set aside to finance
development for the levy system, compensation system and case
management system.

Capital reserve

A capital reserve has been set aside to finance the acquisition of
the property, plant and equipment and depreciation charged is
compensated by a transfer from this reserve each year.

Investment reserve (recycling)
Investment reserve (recycling) represents the accumulated net
change in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets.

Investment reserve (non-recycling)
Investment reserve (non-recycling) represents the accumulated
net change in the fair value of financial assets at FVOCI.

15 Accruals and other payables

Accruals FEETRIE

Deposits received B

Other payables EH b fE T FRIE

Financial liabilities EHBE

Provision for unutilised annual leave REFAFBRERE
Provision for litigation claim (note) FREARR R 2 B E (FaE)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

15 K&

MRES
MAEESRAEBETH 2 ERIFTIER

HBEE
EHESEBEHEREFEED 2 RHE
T EEREIRREFZABEABER
b WORBRREE RN ER2 -

ERESRAUNENRBERETY  AHEA
Rt ANERRE -

EMRAGES
ERAGESANEDERBAESR
AHEZZRREAREERSR -

s

ey

ERRHBOBEABENE HERRE
RHED  WEFAEXARBREIAKE
FERM -

RERB(TEE)
REFHRB(EREARNESREE L

REAREEZEFE -
REREBE(TTEE)

REME(TAERE) EZAABERNAR
EElRzeREEZRBAAEBEE
BFHE -

TR R H B RROR

2018

$
4,948,804 2,286,392
= 170,760
281,150 217,167
5,229,954 2,674,319
575,000 522,000
3,829,481 =
9,634,435 3,196,319
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR T aE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LAVBTTHIR)

The carrying amounts of accruals and other payables approximate
their fair values as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 and are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

Note: Provision for litigation claim is made for a court case which was
still in progress at the end of the reporting period. The provision of
HK$3,829,481 refers to the damage amount claimed by the patient in
respect of his disability resulting from pneumoconiosis.

16 Levy income

Private sector AL

Public works sector AHTHE

— Mass Transit Railway — B T2

— Port and Airport Development Scheme — 0 RS RS
— West Kowloon Cultural District —AhEXERE

— Others —HAfh

Quarry industry AR

In accordance with the provision of Section 35 and schedule 5
in Part VIl of the amended Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma
(Compensation) Ordinance, the levy rate was 0.25% on the value of
(@) all construction operations exceeding HK$1,000,000 undertaken
in Hong Kong and the tender for which has been submitted on or
after 18 June 2000 and (b) on all quarrying products produced in
Hong Kong with effect from 18 June 2000. Effective from 20 August
2012, the levy rate has been changed to 0.15% on the value of (a)
all construction operations exceeding HK$1,000,000 undertaken
in Hong Kong and the tender for which has been submitted on or
after 20 August 2012 and (b) on all quarrying products produced in
Hong Kong with effect from 20 August 2012. Effective from 30 July
2018, the levy threshold on construction operations increased from
HK$1,000,000 to HK$3,000,000.
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MR2018F K 2017F 12 A31H » EEZELE
EMZBEZ EASCEEEQNAEERE B
LABHEEHE -

ek . ERRBRESRNEERFOFLAREMS R
KRB B - BEEH3,829,481 T2
BAERARMERTERMERGENIEH

ZREEHE -
AT )

(EEE ON
2018 2017
$ $
173,424,994 176,742,977
24,969,552 51,524,023
24,616,334 11,906,877
2,033,291 2,499,876
142,374,024 127,533,518
133,394 142,628
367,551,589 370,349,899

REFERT Z(MERNER REE B (HE)
BEHIDEVIE D ISHEMERSHTE  BREA
0.25% ' EAR (a) TEEAREEITMEERR
751,000,000 2 #EiE TR - MEZEER 2000
F6 18 AAKIER : M(b)A20009F 6 A18
ARUEERSRRZAMBABER - 852012
F8HA20HE - HEEFEKE0.15%  FEHAR(a)
FTAEABSEITMEERBHE 1,000,0007T.2
BETRE  MEZEN2012F8 A20H 5k NUE
B R (b) R 20124 8 A 20 A RIABEE B
R2HBARER - 8201847308 - #
EE TR 2B PIEE BB % 1,000,000 TiRS
Z 713,000,000 7T °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR ERAR BT EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LAETTFIR)

17 Employee benefit expenses

17 BEFMKBABEX

Wages and salaries

Staff medical insurance

Staff compensation insurance

Pension costs — defined contribution plan

Pension costs — mandatory provident fund
Provision for unutilised annual leave

TERFHS

B R R

BB R ERR

RIS HR— RE R
RIRGHE

BARSHR—RFIEATES

RERFRZ B

None of the Board members, who are considered as key management
of the Board, received or will receive any fees or other emoluments
in respect of their services to the Board during the year ended 31

December 2018 (2017: HK$NIil).

18 Administrative expenses

18

14,213,307 13,913,722
157,181 109,513

= 43,284

544,973 516,864
310,034 312,612
54,000 42,000
15,279,495 14,937,995

WEAESZESTBEBEABZEZEY » &
ZEMEREZ2018F 12 A3 BIEFERNRZE
SR\ REEMIE S BEERS K H A
RPN (2017 4F « £E) -

TR

Auditor’s remuneration:

— Audit services

— Other services

Impairment loss of accounts receivable
(note 10)

Provision for litigation claim (note 15)

Legal and professional fees

Printing and stationery

Others

19 Medical examination fees

ZEETE S -

— B

~H AR

FEMRBR FURE 1B
(HfzE10)

SRR R Z B (7E15)

FEREEER

ENfRl B2 345

Hfth

19

Medical examination fees represent fees paid and payable to the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in
respect of medical examinations conducted by Pneumoconiosis
Medical Board under Section 23 and 23A of the Pneumoconiosis and

Mesothelioma (Compensation) Ordinance.

20 Income tax expense

20

Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided as the Board is
exempted by virtue of section 88 of the Hong Kong Inland Revenue

Ordinance.

190,000 165,000

10,000 8,000

1,565,688 22,815
3,829,481 =
200,256 220,742

115,341 147,337

1,318,886 1,387,973
7,229,652 1,951,867

HIEE R

HIEEBARE(MERNER LB B (HE)
1BOI)E 23 R 23AMIE - EHN RASNTES
BRITREBRAEEhERTERAGSEZESH
I E Z G B -

FTiSHipa
BWAE BTGB RS FRAELEER
IRIEEECHI (DI 88 AT TR ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR T EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LAETTHIR)

21 REREEHR
FERHERZEETHELER S YR

21 Cash flow information

(@) Reconciliation of surplus for the year to cash generated (a)

from operations

2017
(N1
(BI=E)
$
Surplus for the year FEALR 153,440,006 149,622,254
Adjustments for: PUTEIFFHE
Depreciation (note 5) #r& (MisEs) 922,610 1,013,517
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 6) TR S (fieEe) 50,505 -
Amortisation of discounts of financial RE AT E 2 2R
assets at amortised cost/held-to-maturity BE/FERIPz e
financial assets (note 8) BE 2T (=E8) (17,711) (24,203)
Provision for litigation claim (note 15) AR 2 1B (B 15) 3,829,481 -
Impairment loss of accounts receivable YR TR (B R 1E
(note 10) (FifzE10) 1,565,688 22,815
Gain on disposal of assets classified as HESHARELEL
held for sale (note 13) BEFTSWE (FiiFE13) (36,672,326) =
Interest income FBMA (42,348,914) (34,311,105)
Dividend income BB U A (14,959,324) (15,449,511)
Fair value loss on financial assets at FVPL BAREBEFABRZZ
(note 9) SREEZAREE
518 (Ffi=E9) 19,526,000 =
B Changes in working capital: EEASEE)
Accounts receivable FEURAR R (8,881,383) 8,102,832
Deposits and prepayments &e RIBRFHIE (10,280) 13,000
Advance payment for compensation X HES (56,500) (22,250)
Accruals and other payables FEETRIR R E A FE AT FRIE 2,532,877 417,615
Provision for long service payments REART €1 1,000 30,000
Cash generated from operations RS nReELIRS 78,921,729 109,414,964
Note: The Board has initially applied HKFRS 9 at 1 January 2018. Under M3 E2£ZBEER2018F1A1THERER

the transition methods chosen, comparative information is not
restated. See note 2.2(a)(i).

(EBBEREERDEIWR - REFTER
ZEBETE  LLBEMTTES - F2
BRI FE 2.2(a)(i) ©

(b) Non-cash transactions (b)
The principal non-cash transaction is the receipt of scrip dividend
of HK$1,144,926 (2017: HK$1,035,267).

*kRERS
TZ2ZHBERFREBUARKEEE
1,144,926 7L (20174 = & 1,035,267
7o) e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA SRR T EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA TTIIR)
22 Contingent liabilities 22 FARAE
The Board is contingently liable for compensations payable on 55 ESZBEHAMSSH(2017F : 571%) BRI
(2017: 57) re-assessment applications under the Pneumoconiosis and Chb B3RO & o I P B2 88 (H 1B 160 )R 32 0 13
Mesothelioma (Compensation) Ordinance which has not yet been ERNERAGEESRTZBHBE I NHE
determined by the Pneumoconiosis Medical Board. g -
23 Commitments 23 &L
(a) Capital commitments (a) EXREE
Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the reporting RBEPREFTYWERBERAEBEZER
period but not recognised as liabilities is as follows: T

Property, plant and equipment e Y = 984,677
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) REHERIE
At the end of the reporting period, the Board had the following RBEHMR BEeZEeF@EMELT
future aggregate minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable AR EEE 2 RRKRBERN KERE
operating lease in respect of its property: wmr

2018 2017

$ $

No later than one year —F A = 106,725
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APPENDIX |
B 8% —

Number of Confirmed New Cases in the Past Ten Years
BRAETEHEZHEREF

Number of cases

B Total 42 &4*

[ === == — -
, 743 (30) [128] ,
120 - - - ——- —— - —— - —— - —— - —— - - — - — - - = - = -
106
100 — — - — - = — - = = - = = - = = s = e = — e e — e = s = e =
15
0 85 84

8 74 @ s
[ 72 71
| 69 69

| 2
: . ’ 50 16 0
1

.‘ « - BN = BB B = B B
i 2
i 12 I 2
I
| s
[ 40 _ I - I | i e | |
I
i
I 86 61 63 44 51 68 56 43 54 59
I
i
| 20 — —  _ | i | . _ 1 S — g _ P I
I
i
!
I
i
' 0
! 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
i
: Average Percentage of cases having employment record in the construction / quarry industry \ \
| T BRZEREEXNABEZIAMEES L '
L 86 80 82 89 86 87 85 90 91 83 83 [
i ——
: == Silicosis cases = Asbesfosis cases == Mesothelioma cases
| LI EES AR ERER g EES
|
i * Figures in parentheses | | represents number of Asbestosis cases and figures in brackets [ ] represents number of Mesothelioma cases

included in the fotal.

FOARBRFRERLHFARAIERBEZAY  MARFUAEREHFHEBEEZ AR -
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APPENDIX II
B $ —

Analysis of Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma Cases Newly Confirmed in 2018

—E-\FRERXFAEZHBKRNERREREERED N

Table 1: Age/Average Degree of Incapacity Analysis
Bx— FiRkR/FHRIIEEIBERT
3 1 Age group Number of Average Average DOI
cases age (%)
FiAa Bl BAAE  FEFER FHRKRIFEED
BEERADER*
40 -49 1 = [1] 43 5
M+Z=r 4%
50 - 59 13 - - 56 12
m+Z=+ Bk
60 - 69 41 - [4] 64 16
P W K;
40 — 49 p;q—f—gp_q—}—ﬂﬁ 1 /\+:I:/\+j1rj’%_§
== 50-59 A +ER TR 13 70-79 13 - [4] 73 22
= 60-69 NTERTNBR 4 TTELTAR
0= CFEETAE 13 g)and above 3 @ N 87 23
80 and above N\ +EKELALE 3 NFERUE
Total 71 2) [10] 65 16
B

== General work in construction site

AR AR5

== Unemployed/retired

KEBRIK

25

46

* Total number has included 2 fatal cases, the degree of incapacity of whom has not
been determined.

* REEEIFRAARERATFRENREZRCHESR -

Table 2: Patients’ Employment Status at Time of First Registration

BXR=- BWAEBRBLRZBEER
Category of occupation Number of cases Percentage
Bi=E5| BAAE FEEZ=
General work in construction site 25 - [2] 35.2
I AR A TS
Unemployed/retired 46 (2) [8] 64.8
REBERK
Total 71 (2) [10] 100.0
B

* Figures in parentheses ( ) represent number of Asbestosis cases and brackets []
represent numbers of Mesothelioma cases included in the total.

() NETFABRAHETARMTEREEZAZ  MIANHFAREREEFHEKLE
BEZAE -
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APPENDIX II
L

Table 3: Employment History of Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma Cases Newly Confirmed in 2018

BR= ZZZ-N\FREXHAETZHERTNEFRERBESEBEZIERE
Length of employment
RETERR

Industry Below 10 years 10 years or above
RETE +HEUT TEHFUE
Construction Only - 0 - 27 (0) [1] 27 (0) [1]
Regdz—1a
Construction & Quarry - 0 - 1 (0) [0] 1 (0) [0]
BEERARESE
Construction & Quarry and others 2 (1) [0] 29 (0) [3] 31 (1) [3]
B AEEREMITHE
Sub-total 2 (1) [0] 57 (0) [4] 59 (1) [4]
FE/NH
Other industries
HithfT2
Ship manufacturing/sailoring - 0 _ 1 (1) [0] 1 (1) [0]
eSS T
Machine repairing/Metal work _ 0 _ 1 0) [1] 1 (0) 1]
HARISI2 T2
Jade/gem stone polishing _ 0 _ 3 ) 0] 3 0) 0]
B2y V=tibie
it 2 © [0 5 © [5] 7 © [5]
EAfh
Sub-total 2 ©© [0 10 Mm . 12 (M 6l
EE/NH
Total 4 (1) [0] 67 (1) [10] 71 (2) [10]
B

Notes:

- Figures in parentheses () represent number of Asbestosis cases and brackets [ ] represent numbers of Mesothelioma cases included in the

total.

- Among the 71 cases under study, 59 (83.1%) have worked in the construction and /or the quarry industries. Only 12 (16.9%) have had
employment connection with neither.

- OAEBTFTAARBEPABNERBEZAS M IANSFRARREHETRHEBEEEZAR -
- MET71ZBET - 59A(83.1%) BREEER, TREETIE - S92 A(16.9%) AIfERNEMITELE °
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APPENDIX III
B s =

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTIIR)

Analysis of Payments Made Under the Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma
(Compensation) Ordinance as at 31 December 2018

E-N\F+ZR=t—-B(MBKRNEBKEKE (FE) RODBEHDH

n=

53

5-20%
25-40%
45 -60%
65 - 80%
85-100%

i

1

1

1

|

\

\

\

5-20%
25-40%
45 -60%
65 -80%
85 -100%

965

965
153
67
20

Table 1: Analysis of Latest Payments Made to the “Old case”
Pneumoconiosis Patients

Bx— [BERI*BARNESZSABEESEIN

Degree of incapacity Number of  Total amount Average
assessed in latest case(s) of monthly compensation
assessment/ payment  payment per
re-assessment (%) month per case
BATEH 2 RATIE BAAE BAMHE BASATY
BEIRERDXR BxH EBERzEEES

$ $
5-20 155 830,795 5,360
25-40 53 452,255 8,533
45 -60 25 309,595 12,384
65-80 9 144,540 16,060
85-100 1 17,300 17,300
Total 243 1,754,485 7,220
ay

In addition, “Compensation for Care and Attention” is payable to 1 case at $5,210 per case

per month.

BIEBAARINEREBAET A — Tz [#ERRETHENREE] -

* “Old case” includes those patients who have received a lump-sum compensation

before the ordinance amended in 1993.

* o [BEZR] B1993FENIEKEI G EER [ — 28| HEZEAR -

Table 2: Analysis of Latest Payments Made to the “New case”
Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma Patients

Bx= [HERI'BARHES2SABESEIN

Degree of incapacity Number of  Total amount Average
assessed in latest [1=0) of monthly compensation
assessment/ payment payment per
re-assessment (%) month per case
RHEHZEBATIE BmAAH BRfE BABA¥H
EIRERS X AL EEzRELE

$ $
5-20 965 7,776,057 8,058
25-40 153 2,244,320 14,669
45 -60 67 1,419,725 21,190
65 - 80 20 532,410 26,621
85-100 8 280,385 35,048
Total 1,213 12,252,897 10,101
ey

In addition, “Compensation for Care and Attention” is payable to 4 cases at $5,210 per case

per month.

ﬁ4%FA—I§E$7I\AEEXtH£:F Btz [EELRREFTENHE] -

“New case” includes those patients who have not received any lump-sum

compensation before.

# [FT{EZ] BIEREM [ —28 ] FEZER -
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APPENDIX III
B dk =

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTTHIR)

Table 3: Summary of Compensation Paid Out Under
Ordinance
Bx= (WERTNERRBRE (HE) KX HALSE

Compensation item

faEEe

Compensation for death resulting from Pneumoconiosis
and Mesothelioma (or both)
fhEERIN B Mk B (&)

SIBFLTHFEE

the Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma (Compensation)

Expenses
incurred from
1 Jan to

31 Dec 2018

Expenses
incurred from
1 Jan to

31 Dec 2017

Total Expenses
incurred from
9 Jul 1993 to
31 Dec 2018
—AR=F
tAhBZE
—E-N\F

—E-—tF
—B—HZE

—g-N\F
—-A—RZ
t=A=+-—~H t=RA=t+—-H T=A=t+—H
ZXH ZX XA

$ $ $

26,779,345 16,750,061 477,152,784

Compensation for bereavement

BERTZRAFEE

673,180 662,340 15,174,823

Monthly compensation for incapacity, pain, suffering and

loss of amenities
FRTIEREN « BJE -~ e B AR AL
L WEAmME

174,293,936 175,360,510 3,228,455,462

Compensation for incapacity prior to date of diagnosis

#15 B HR AT S R T(ERE H V(8

2,148,243 2,336,569 47,405,970

Compensation for care and attention

IR KRBT E VR (E

418,918 260,793 16,713,631

Funeral expenses

BIRE

5,487,041 5,355,159 62,901,260

Medical expenses

BER

2,267,596 2,005,657 35,491,214

Expenses for medical appliances
EREKEER

1,395,655 1,676,364 23,489,190

Total
e

213,463,914 204,407,453 3,906,784,334
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APPENDIX IV
459

Profile of All Cases Receiving Compensation as at 31 December 2018
REZB-NF+ZA=+-ABERENMHERAZSTER

Table 1: Profile of the ‘Old Case’ Pneumoconiosis Patients
Bx— [BERIBAZHETER
Age group Number of cases Average age Average degree
of incapacity (%)
F iR Bl mAANE FIEFER PHRKRIERED
84 BEESX
50-159 2 59 10
E+ERTBR
60 - 69 43 67 28
NTERT R
114 70-79 114 75 25
T+ EEL TR
80 and above 84 85 19
= 50-59 A+ERTNE 2 NtEEAE
m= 60-69 ATEATAR 483 Total 243 77 23
== 70-79 tt+Ett+hm 114 By
80 and above  N\+EKEMAE 84
Table 2:  Profile of the ‘New Case’ Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma Patients
BXR= [HERIBAZHETFER
113 78 Age group Number of cases Average age Average degree
178

of incapacity (%)

=l

I
|
f "'

FHRAE R FANE FHFR FHRATRED

REEAE

20-29 1 [1] 28 100
—+z=—t+hm
361 30-39 1 [1 37 10
=tz=tm
591 40 - 49 3 (1] 46 18
m+ZEH+ 5k
50-59 78 [3] 58 16
At+t=H N
= 20-29 —tE=t+h% 1 60 — 69 591 2] 65 15
= 30-39 =tE=1+NE 1 ANTESTBR
40 - 49 BRI 3 70-79 361 [6] 74 18
== 50-59 A+EE+AE 78 trEETIR
m 60 - 69 NTESTAR 591 80 and above 178 [1] 85 18
= 70-79 ttartnm 361 NTBRRMALE
80 and above  N\+EEIA L 178 Total 1,213 [15] 70 17
wmey
Note:

Figures in brackets [ ] represent numbers of Mesothelioma cases included in the total.

(I NB TR AAREERBEAEEZ AL -
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APPENDIX V
Bt &% F

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LABTTHIR)

Five-Year Financial Summary

REGBRE
2014
—B-mE
($'000)
Income KA
Levies B 367,552 370,350 346,934 358,063 387,759
Interest & 42,349 34,311 30,065 35,968 35,141
Others =X 1ON 52,366* 16,999 14,518 19,452 14,445
Total income BN 462,267 421,660 391,517 413,483 437,345
Expenditure Xl
Compensation e 213,464 204,407 192,212 188,449 149,666
Project expenses EERY 43,955 41327 24,082 32,416 26,318
Staff, administrative and other expenses B {THERREMAS 30,194 24,331 21122 20,116 19,790
Depreciation/Amortisation HE/Hi 973 1,014 1,014 1,014 1,014
Capital expenditure VNG 715 959 769 843 1,138
Exchange loss/Fair value loss on ELEBE/ UATEEAR
financial assets (Tracker Fund) SEEE(BEAS) 19,526 - 653 5,304 2,413
Total expenditure ey 308,827 272,038 239,852 248,142 200,339
Surplus for the year REERHR 153,440 149,622 151,665 165,341 237,006
Transfer from capital reserve HERHERD 7,581 1,014 1,014 1,014 1,014
Transfer from investment reserve hiRERFERL 39,585 - - - -
Accumulated fund brought forward HFEZHE 2,373,536 2,218,517 2,078,539 1,920,364 1,693,793
2,574,142 2,369,153 2,231,218 2,086,719 1,931,813
Transfer to project funds/computer BNERES /TWESR
systems fund/capital reserve £/ BKGE (45,176) (40,779) (37,817) (40,595) (37,767)
Transfer from project funds to HEHES
compensate project expenses B HREY 55,104 45,162 25,116 32,415 26,318
Accumulated fund carried forward ETFEREES 2584070 2373536 2218517 2,078,539 1,920,364

*  Others include dividend income from listed securities $14,959,304, Ex-gratia fund administration charge received
$138,148, penalty on late payments of levies $456,687, gain on disposal of Hing Yip office $36,672,326, rental income
$106,725 and sundry income $32,726.

* HMRABERE L MESMERE 14,959,304 7T - REFESMBEZTHER 138,148 7T - RIBSEATKER 2
213 456,687 7T~ HEFEPAE 2 W2536,672,326 71 + FAEURA 106,725 7T RFFIEUA 32,726 7T
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